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Mr. Magrath: Is the Province of Ontario represented here?

Sir William Hearst: No, Mr. Chairman, it is not. I did
not understand that there would be anything in the nature of a
formal hearing today, and I told them it would not be necessary
for them to come.

Mr. Johnston: Tuere is no appearance for the Province of
Manitoba or the Province of Ontario.

Mr. Magrath: I have just returned to the city and I was
not aware that there was anything approaching the nature of a
hearing; but, gentlemen, we are pleased to have you here, because
probably you will be able to gain information that will be useful
to you and useful to us in further hearings. It has been
suggested that inasmuch as the Backus interests are represented
here perhaps Mr. Meyer might be disposed to submit any observa-
tion that he wishes to present to the Commission.

Mr. Meyer: Mr. Chairman and members of the Commission
and representatives of the various interests concerned in this
matter, the Receivers of the Minnesota & Ontario Power Company
have not had sufficient time to go into this matter fully and
determine questions of policy respecting future developments
on the upper waters. I have, however, spent some considerable
time on their behalf and personally on my own behalf as consult-
ing engineer at one time representing the United States in the
Leke of the Woods investigation.

No doubt you all recall that Mr., Arthur V. White, of
Toronto, and I were acting as engineers in the Lake of the Woods
investigation from 1912 to 1917; that based upon the report of
the Commission in that matter and the report of the consulting
engineers to the Commission a treaty was formulated, newly
ratified and put into sffect, and has been in operation for some
years under which the Lake of the Woods is regulated in a certain
manner. Personally 1 have assumed that that treaty stands for
the present investigation; that it is a question of further
development of storage and power on the upper watershed that is
primarily before this Commission.

In examining the several reports that have been made by
your engineers I find myself in agreement with the preliminary
reports of 1929 and 1930, but I regret to say that I am not in
agreement with many basic data presented in the later report
which has been referred to by Mr. Scovil as primarily the
results of a reinvestigation by his colleague Major Bullard
and his assistants. I find that in the last report many of the
conclusions arrived at respecting the upper waters in our Lake
2g th? Woods report are cast aside and others substituted

erefor. '

I have taken up a few matters with Mejor Bullard's
successor, Major Lyman, and had hoped that there might be an
opportunity for the engineers to get together to thrash out
their differences. It appears from the correspondence that
thus far at least your Commission has not authorized the
release of such information as I requested which might permit
the engineers to get together 4o iron out their differences.

For example, ons of our main differences is the relation between
the natural stage of Rainy Lake end the outflow from that lake
at various stages.
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We also differ respecting the relation between the natural
outflow and stage on Lake Namakan. The result is that our basing
point, whieh is the condition of nature, 1is lost. The compu?ed
natural levels for Rainy Lake and Namakan Lake as presented in
the last report are at variance with those presented in 1929 and
1930 to whieh we agreed because they were founded upon the basic
conclusion respecting relations between outflow and the lake
stage that we had adopted in the Lake of the Woods investigation.
If the present conclusions hold respecting that relationship in
a state of nature, then in 1927 Rainy Lake in a state of nature
would have been about two feet lower at the crest of the flood
than it was according to the previous computations and conclu-

sions.

We consider that there is substantial difference that
should be ironed out before we can proceed with the whole problem
of storage and regulation., We believe we have data that fully

"eonfirm the conclusions of 1917 and 1930, which, unfortunately,

do not appear to have been found by the engineers in the later
investigation. I refer particularly to observations of slope
fall between Rainy Lake and the dam during the flood of 1918
from which coefficients of discharge can be arrived at and which
can be used for the computation of that relationship and in the
checking of that relationship between the natural level and the
natural outflow. Those records are here in these offices and in
the offices of the Commission at Washington. They are among a
mass of data which were not published and which could not have
been published. These were observed during the flood of 1916.
In my opinion they leave no room for doubt as to the accuracy

of those original curves which were accepted in the report of
1930 and which are at variance with the later report.

I hope it will be possible for your Commission to arrange
so that we engineers can thrash out our differences on the
technical grounds, ané try to arrive at a common conclusion.
Until that is done it is idle to talk of storage and regulati.n
as we see it. We believe a great deal of time would be saved
if that could be possibles.

This morning in the few moments at my disposal before
coming here I presented some of the basic curves to your engineers,

both the American and the Canadian engineers, I might mention

something of the background on which we are working. We believe
if you check the data you will arrive at the same conclusion. I
am not speaking for them, but I do believe that we engineers can
get together on some of these fundamental matters. ‘

\
I find in looking over the published reports that there
are a few things more or less minor and all of which can be N
readily thrashed out if we can get together and the details of
our computations be made public. There is no reason why we
E?ogld burden your Commission with matters of detail of this
nd.,

I might refer to page 47 of this published table, in which
a figure appears that shows that in 1917 the level of Rainy Lake
varied 7.2 feet between November 1st and June 1st. Evidently
that figure is in error because the records show a variation of
about 7.8 feet for that year. That is so large that the average
stated at the bottom of that column, which is 2.9, becomes about
2.6, The natural variation was 2.1. In other words, that one
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figure practically cuts in half the difference between the
variation under control ar” the variation in a state of nature.
In that same zolumm no variation is shown for the year 1925. As
nearly as I can make out there is a variation of about 2.1 feet.

These are some of the differences that we engineers should
thrash cut among ourselves, but it must mean that the Commission
will authorize ths engineers to throw their cards on the table
and let us as represeniatives of the power company and myself
persona.ly ac previocusly acting as engineer for ycur Commission
to s.e those computations in order to find out wherein our
differences originate.

In this iuportant case that I refer to I believe it
resulted from their failure to {ind these certain records which
were matters of knowledge %to me, of course, because we made the
observations in 1216.

So far as the matisr of a project is concerned; I intima-
ted awhile ago that the Recelvers had not yet been able to
determine upon a policy looking into the future. I am willing
to give you my views personally in a preliminary way if you
choose %o have me do o, 7 do not have authority to commit my
clients, the Recelvers, at this time respecting possible future
development of the upper watershed in the way of power anc
storage.

Would you comsider it desirable, Mr. Rogers, for me to
make a statsment on some of those matters? Would the Commission
like me to make sucih a statement?

Mr., Magrath: Go ahead.

rs Meyer: In a general way, and as far as we have been
able to study the project for future storage and future power
development, we are inclined to adopt a prrojesct that involves
mucn less storage and much less varistion in lake levels and
less power development vecause on the basis of the information
presented it would appear to be, from our viewpoint, rather too
expensive storage and power,

Mr, Stanley: Whom do you mean by “"we"?

Mr. Meyer: I mean Mr. Backus, and, to some extent, the
Receivers and myseif personally who have discussed it in a prelim-
inary way but have not yet determined upon a policy. I am author-
izned to make a study and report tc them., We are in the midst of
that study ncw. I am just trying to indicate trends which may
help scme of these men here in these probleme if my own view
holds with the Receivers later on. I san no* wvouch for that.
Neithner do I suopose they can.

I just wantel to point out thut we Dbelieve, and I personally
believe, that the method of regulation which will make the control
of outilow from Rainy ILake depend upor the needs of the Winnipeg
River water powers and will give us power and storage only in so
far as 1t is consistent with the provision of the maximum depend-
able outflow from the lake of the Woods will not meet with my
personal appreval, and I doubt whether it will meet with the
approval of my clients. In other words, the type of regulation
recommencded, in so far as it affects Rainy Lake, stating specifi-
cally that the flow shall be the maximum cdependable consistent
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with the above; namely, the maintenance of the maximum dependable
outflow from the Leke of the Woods, will not meet with our
approval. We are figuring on much less storage on Sgganaga Lake
and Northern Light lLake; and we contemplate the possible deve lop~
ment of power at the outlet of Sturgeon Lake in Canada dnd the
utilization of the Saganage storage in connection with develop-
ment as offering probably larger return on the invespment.‘ We
believe that that project would eliminate the diversion to the
boundary and the regulation of that storage primerily for the
benefit of the lower plants at the outlet of Basswood, if
instailed, and at the outlet of Lac Lacroix in particular. We
are inclined to believe in particular that the smaller upper
plants will not prove economical. .

For some time I have been personally tonsidering primarily
the development of the Lac Lacroix water powér, which involves an
important question, namely, that of the possibility of diverting
water to the boundary in order to afford a more economical
development. It is true -- and I might as well state it now --
that it is possible to divert that water from the Namakan River
and develop it economically in Canada. I might just as well
put my cards on the table. :

Mr, Magrath: Will you repeat thaf, Mr. Meyer?

L Mr. Meger: It is ec6nomicai%y possible to divert water
from the Namakar River to a Site ettirely within Canada and
develop that powe¥ economically which can not hbe economically
developed on the Namakan River because it is divided into so
many falls and much of the fall would be lost in the rapids
which can not be economically developed. We recognize that
fact. We still believe, from the viewpoint of the interests
of both countries and of navigation and recreation on those
upper waters, that diversion to the boundary would be beneficial
to both countries.

In proceeding with our studies of possible power projects
on this watershed we would like very much to know what the
attitude of the Commission is going to be in the matter of
diversion of water from streams entirely within Canada to
boundary channels.

Mr, Stanley: Would that diversion ocour elsewhere than
in lLac Lacroix?

Mr. Meyer: Particularly in Lac Lacroix unless Basswood's
powers are developed and the Saganaga storage is diverted to the
boundary for the benefit of those powers. More power can be
developed if the Saganaga stcrage is used down the boundary over
the Basswood Falls and through the Basswood development and also
the Lac Lacroix development.

That, just in brief, is our present position. I am sSorry
that I can not speak more definitely at this time, On one thing,
however, I think I have spoken definitely and with the full
approval of the Receivers, that is, we can not sccept large
portions of the latest report of the engineers in so far as it
relates to natural levels on Reiny Lake, on Namakan Leke and all
comparisons of the benefits of storage with natural conditions.
It affects also the natural levels of the Lake of the Woods.
Those methods of regulation assume the possibility of different
control on the Lake of the Woods. We have not been willing to
accept that as a promise.
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Before we proceed with further studies it should be
possible for the engineers to get around the table and thrash
out their differences. We are perfectly willing to start with
the records so far as they were published up to 1929 and 1930
in the preliminary report. Thank you, gentlemen.

Mr. Magrath: Zefore you set down, Mr. Meyer, how long
would it take to have that round table telk and get results?

, Mr. Meyer: Of course; that would be difficult to say.
In so far as the specific things I have mentioned are con-
cerned we may be able to arrive at a conclusion rapidly and
we may not. Then, of course, *here are many other matters in
the report that I have not been able to touch upon and that I
would want to examine; and I would like the privilege of being
able to get tngether with your engineers as to the basic con-
putations that lead up to those conclusions,

Mr. Magrath: The difficulty that has always confronted
the Commission is that we have wished to bring together certain
data and furnish the public with intelligent data, following
which we could have a hearing. That has been our difficulty up
to the present time and the delays have been due to that. The
question in my mind is what further delay will be necessary,
because I think we should notify the public as to when we expect
to give them data that will enable them to intelligently discuss
this matter,

Mr. Meyer: Yes; I feel that the situation is very
unfortunate that I find it necessary to come here and take

~exception to this last report both on behalf of the Receivers

and on my own behalf as one of the Commission's engineers at
that time. Mr. White fully concurred in them. The details of
working out the curves were left mainly with me while Mr. White
was working on other nhases of the report. So I feel that I
have a double interest in the matter.

I feel that it is unfortunate that the data to which I
have referred were apparently not in hand when your engineers
reached their conclusion respecting the relation between
outflow and stage. There is nothing in the report that
indicates that they were available, In fact, there is a
specific statement respecting the surveys we made at that
time and the surveys of the Department of Public Works; and
the difficulty of determining a coefficient. That difficulty
vanishes when those difficulties we considered in 1929 are
taken into consideration.

Mr. McCumber: How long have you been employed in this
work as a representative of the companies you speak of?

Mr. Meyer: My employment has been intermittent. I have
been employed as a consulting engineer; never for the receiver-
ship and never with a retainer. I was employed on flowage
cases in both countries in 1920. I was employed in connection
with power rights at the outlet of the Lake of the Woods in
1922 or 1923, There have been periods of three or four years
when I have had no connection whatsoever with the power company
and did no work for them and received no pay from them; but I
have been engaged on specific matters from time to time over
the entire period since a year or two after the publication
of the Lake of the Woocds report.
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Mr. McCumber: This matter was submitted to the Commission
in 1925 and immediately thereafter the engineers from both
countries began their work. During considerable of the time
since 1925 you have also been employed in connection with and
worked on the same project?

Mr. Meyer: Slightly from time to time.,

Mr. McCumber: Did you corroborate to any extent or attempt
to do so with the engineers who were at work so as to ascertain
whether you could agree on any of these matters?

Mr. Meyer: I did, sir. I tried to supply the data that
were requested. There is a record in my office of quite a
substantial file of material that went forward, but I was not
able to get all the information that was desired. In the spring
of 1921, in April, we had a conference in which I spoke very
frankly about our views respecting storage and further develop-
ment, and I have tried to keep in touch with the investigation
so far as there was an opportunity.

0f course, respecting this matter there was no opportunity
for me to get in touch with them, and neither did I know of any
differences arising because of the fact that some data were not
before the men who were doing the work.

Mr. McCumber: Were the data that resulted from our own
investigation furnished to the American and Canadian engineers
who were at work on the problem?

Mr. Meyer: Unfortunately this one matter that I referred
to was developed only Saturday morning, and the copies were sent
to Major Bullard and to Mr. Scovil this morning indicating our
attitude respecting the curve. I do not feel that the detailed
calculations relating to the recommendation come within the
scope which the Commission has authorized to be released to the
public.

Mr. McCumber: In 1925 at the first hearing we held on the
subject it was intimated to Mr. Backus and to all others that the
Commission would be pleased to have all the engineers interested
in these projects collaborate with one another and work together
for the very purpose of getting an absolute agreement between
the engineers who alone could pass upon the scientific questions
that were to be presented. They are technical and the Commis-
sion, of course, would not understand them without a report from
the several engineers, including those of the Backus' interests,
and it has always been a surprise to me that they were not work-
ing together in such a way that they could all bring their
matters before us and lay their cards on the table long before
this,.

Mr. Meyer: I might say that I wes not present at the
hearing of 1925. I was not at that time retained by the power
company in any manner. I had no connection with the project
until at least about a year and & half or two y3ars ago.

Mr, McCumber: As indicated by the Chairman, the Commission
would like to have as soon as possible the engineers get together
and present to us something that they can agroe upon without
delaying the matter too long. :
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Mr. Meyer: Mr. Rogers has just c¢alled my attention to
the fact that, of course, we are entirely in agreement with
the data so far as published; the plates, tables and text,
these three volumes that were published, together with con-
siderable material in typewritten form, in 1930. We were
waiting for power and storage studies, using these as &
basis. My office is full of curves all based upon these.

And now there is a new report that overthrows all of
these so far as Rainy Lake and Namakan Lake and natural dis-
cha:ges are concerned. Therefore, with that as a basing

18. point the bvenafits from storage as compared with nature will

19.

all vary.,

Mr. Magrath: To what extent, in a practical way and
expressed in power, is the difference between the figures that
you have been dealing with and the previous figures?

Mr. Meyer: Sco far as the exact amount of power at any
given site is concerned I can not tell you what that difference
is; but I feel that the difference is not so much whether we
use one basis or the other, but the important point comes in
when we get down to this basing point, which is the condition
of nature.

For example, it is of the utmost importance whether in
the flood of 1927 Rainy Lake in a state of nature would have
gone two feet higher according to our computations than accord-
ing tc the computations of your engineers in this latest report.
That is of the utmost importance. The same is true with respect
to the flood of 1916. It is of the utmost importance when we
come tc determine what constitutes ordinary high water in those
lakes. So I say that so far as power studies are concerned
there propably is not such a great difference, but when you come
to figure the economy of develoning a certain power, then it
must be evident that the basing point must be correct or your
conclusions can not be correct; and the condition of nature must
be the basing point,.

If we can get a certain regulation at a certein mark and
we say that would represent a mark up to which the Federal
Government holds an easement, it is one matter. If we have to
go a foot or two or three feet below that, it is quite a
different matter.

Mr. Bartlett: Mr. Meyer, on the gquestion of storage, to
get more power and more equal power there must be a guestion of
building dams, how high they should be built and what the
effect would be. That seems to be one question. Now, when you
speak of the height of the water, for instance, in Rainy Lake
at its natural high water mark in the past does that guestion
enter into the question of storage or into the question of the
regulation of the height of Rainy Lake?

Mr. Meyer: It enters into the question of the cost of
various amounts of storage and the guestion of whether or not
the man who is going to get the benefit, whether on the Winnipeg
River or at the outlet of Rainy Lake or at the outlet of ILac
Licroix, is going to e willing to pay for the cost of that
storage.
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Mr. Bartlett: We have been up there and have been over
these lakes so I have a visualized understanding of it but not
a technical understanding. Rainy Lake is the lake whose outlet
furnishes your power,; is it not?

Mr. Meyer: At the present time, yes, sir.

Mr. Bartlett: Now, assuming for the moment that you are
not going to build dams and establish reservoirs up the line,
does your gquestion of original curves still apply? Are you
talking about the question of our regulatin% the height and the -
lowness of Rainy Lake? Is that largely what your curve portends?

Mr. Meyerﬁ It has a very definite bearing upon the future
of Rainy Lake in so far as additional storage and the use of
that additional storage are concerned.

Mr. Bartlett: Just for the sake of getting an understand-
ing, do you understand, Sir William, that the Reference involves
our establishing high and low water marks for Rainy Lake?

Sir William Hearst: My recollection is that we are
required to say at what level Rainy Lake should be held.

\ Mr. Bdrtlett: Does not that mean if it is econqmiCally
feasible to build these dams and establish these reservoirs?

Sir William Heatsti I assuimeé that the whole thing is
predicated on the economical feasibility of it.

Mr. Bartlett: As a hypothetical question, if we should
decide that it was not economically feasible to build these
dams for making storage basins, would the gquestion of
establishing high and low water levels for Rainy Lake still be
in this Reference?

Mr. McCumber: The question is what elevation to recommend
if it is found to be practicable.

Mr. Bartlett: What I am leading up to is this, Mr.
Meyer; you were speaking of some curves, which I take it
represent the natural height of the water on Rainy Lake and
at flood seasons and other seasons. Is not that what you mean?

Mr. Meyer: Yes; the level that would prevail if there
were no dams, ‘

Mr. Bartlett:‘ You get at those natural curves first?
Mr. Meyer: Yes.

Mr., Bartlett: And that is the question on which you
differ with the others?

Mr. Meyer: Yes.

Mr. Bartlett: Is it true that that involves our determin-
ing at some time or other under some proceeding the height and
the lowness of Rainy Lake in some similar manner that they did
in the case of the Lake of the Woods?
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. Mr, Meyer: I think it does. In Question 4 you are
asked, "What interests on each side of the boundary are
benefited by the present storage?" . The basis of benefit
must be the condition of nature. For example, if in time
of flood the present storage dams will keep that water two
feet lower than it would have been in a state of nature,
that is one benefit to somebody other than the power company.
When they keep it up to get more water that is a benefit to
the power company. But it makes a lot of difference if that
water were two feet higher and had done a lot of flooding.

Mr. Bartlett: A flood season would give you more power
until the flood naturally subsided, but would the natural
height give you any right to hold it there?

Mr. Meyer: That was not my point, although the law on
the United States side, I claim, does give us that very right
to hold it where it would have gone in a state of nature.

Mr,., Bartlett: At flood tide?

.~ Mr. Meyer: At flood tide; because it says that sufficient
dapacity shall be provided so that the water will not go any
higher in time of flood than it would have gone in 8 state of
nature, ‘

So I say it is of the utmost importance to determine where
the water would have gone in 1927 and where it actually did go.
If we could have kept that water up two feet higher we would
have had an additional storage. There would have been many
benefits to the power company if we had let it go, but because
of all the clamor -- because no one knew how high it would go
in a state of nature -- the water was released -at the request
of the Department; and as a result of public clamor that the
dam was creating a flcod, we contend that the figures prove
conclusively that the lake would have gone two feet higher
and would have stayed all summer in a state of nature. We
consider that of the utmost importance.

Mr. Bartlett: I am not sure whether I understand it,
but you have helped me a little, anyhow.

Mr. Meyer: I am very sorry. I would like to make that
entirely clear.

Mr. Bartlett: You can .not educate me in matters of
engineering.

Mr. Stanley: Mr. Meyer, do you mean to say that the
water during those floods would have gone even higher in a
state of nature than they did with the dams erected?

Mr. Meyer: Yes, for this reason; when those dams were
built they were placed below the natural falls and a deep roock
cut was made through the natural tongue of rock that extended
out in the river and restricted the flow of water so as to
Canadian canal exists in which there are headgates. The water
was permitted to discharge through those gates. Over at the
Canadian power house there were islands with trees growing on
them. That entire rock mass was excavated to make an approach
to the Canadian power house. The capacity to discharge the
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water is much greater than it was in a state of nature, Therg-
fore, you can get the water out of the lake much faster thgnlln
a state of nature and thus keep the water from rising so high,

LB,
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because the level of the lake has a relation between inflow and
outflow. If you make your outflow larger with the same inflow
your lake will not be so high. It is just a balancing made
possible by this rock excavation through this natural tongue
that necessitates the river making a complete right angle turn
and another turn before it tumbles over the falls.

Mr. Bartlett: You mean by the excavations which you have
made in building your dams you have made it possible to drain
the lake more quickly than nature would, and that by virtue of
compensation for those cuts and that additional outflow you have
a right, by means of your dams, to hold it back to the extent
that it would have been held baock by nature?

Mr. Meyer: Yes; and we make it possible to do that without

making the lake go higher. If we put a dam in a natural outlet and

do not first increase the outflow sapacity by rock or earth exca-
vation, that lake would inevitably go higher under control than in
a state of nature.

v Mr. Wilson! What was done in that respect at the Kettle
Falls Dams?

~ Mr. Meyefi Also donsiderable rock excavation was made to
intrease thé outflow tapabity in & similar mefineri

Mr. Wilson: Did that excavation extend below the natural
bed in depth as well as in width at the Kettle Falls Dams?

Mr. Meyer: I have not the detailed information here; but,
as I recall it, yes.

Mr. Stanley: Your contention is that there was no raising
of the natural level, of the original shore level in the
impounded waters by virtue of the erection of the dams at Inter-
national Falls and Kettle Falls?

Mr. Meyer: The question of natural flow makes it just a
little difficult to answer that question, but I am sure that I
can clear the matter up in a moment. There is no doubt about
the ordinary level during the year being increased by storage
in order to utilize that water. I was referring to the flood
level and I wanted to show you a chart that shows the raise as
it would have been according to our computations and the level
that actually existed., That, I think, will show you quite
clearly what I mean. Unfortunately there are so many papers
and I cannot get just the one that I want. Meanwhile may I make
this comment, that Mr. Rogers has just suggested that the
importance of the data that I speak of, of that base data, is
shown by the fact that the American engineer felt it necessary
to make this reinvestigation of base data. That should be the
best indication of the importance of the base data., The black
line on this chart which I have in my hand shows the actual
level on Rainy lake in 1927. You will note there was compara-
tively little variation in level during the year. These two
curves, one red and one blue, show the variation that would have
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taken place if there had been no dam at the outlet. You will
notice that the water would have been higher in the state of
nature during the summsr, but it would have been lower during
the gpring and during the fall.,

Mr. Magrath: Can you say how much higher or how much
lower?

Mr, Meyer: There would have been a variation from spring
to summer in a state of nature of about ten to eleven feet and
thers actually was a variation of about three or three and a
half feet,

Mr. Magrath: In what year?

Mr. Meyer: In 1927 and during the summer of 1927,
According to our computations the level in the middle of July
actually would have been between two and three feet higher in
a state of nature than it actually was. According to the latest
report it would have been only a foot higher in July and the
highest point reached would have been only a few tenths of a
foot higher than the actual level., That is why I say that the
matter is of the utmost importance.

Mr. Bartlett: I am getting out of my kindergarten frame
of mind, so perhaps I may ask another question. Do I understand
if, in a state of nature it floods to a certain point on a man's
land, for instance, that your right to build a dam gives you the
right to hold it all the time at that extreme height?

Mr. Meyer: No, not at all,

Mr. Bartlett: Do you claim any rights under your charter
in the state, or whatever powers you have, to build a dam to
hold the water higher than it would be by nature?

Mr. Meyer: At certain times of the year.

Mr. Bartlett: You have that in your charter?

Mr. Meyer: The act of Congress authorizes the construction
of that dam in the interest of navigation to a height to hold the
level at high water mark.

Mr. Bartlett: All the time at high water mark?

Mr. Meyer: If we so choose, but if we held it there all
the time we would not get the benefit of the storage.

Mr., Bartlett: But you have the power under the charter
to hold the water as long as you please at the flood height?

Mr. Meyer: At high water mark. It does not say “extreme
high water mark" and we do not claim it to mean that. It says
"high water mark". That elevation was shown at 497 on the plans
that received the approval at that time.

Sir William Hearst: High water mark was a fixed point
on your plans?
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Mr. Meyer: It was fixed at the height of the dam as shown
at 497 with reference to the flashboards to raise it to the
extreme high water mark of 500 or 501. That is more or less
ratified, and our rights in Canada refer to it in the samé way
that the use or non-use of the flashboards. shall be under the
proper control of the Government of Canada. ‘

Mr. Bartlett: In the United States have they anybody
exercising control?

Mr. Meyer: I do not think there is anybbdy there, but I
think Major Bullard could say what part the United States
representatives took in that.,

Ma jor Bullard: There is a general supervision with
respect to navigation, but the supervision has never been a
very active exercise.

Mr. Bartlett: Your charter, as you understand it, gives
you the right by your plan to hold the water at high water
level, usin% the term "high water levels" perhaps in the sense
that it is the mean or average high water mark. Is that your
understanding of it?

Mr, Meyafé That is a question just what that phrase
means, what particular height.

Mr. Bartlett: That or the flood height?
Mr. Meyer: We do not think it means either extreme.

Mr. Bartlett: Probably the mean high water mark. See
if I get you. By virtue of building a dam you have widened
and deepened the channel so that you could, if you so desired,
drain the lake faster than it would drain by nature?

Mr. Meyer: Yes.

Mr. Bartlett: So that you perhaps claim a right to find
out where the high water mark is and hold it there as long as
you think it would be held there by natural forces?

Mr. Meyer: We feel that under the act we have the right,
in time of extreme flood such as that of 1916 and 19827, to let
the lake rise above the level at which we make any claim to
have the authority to hold it under ordinary circumstances,
but only as much as it would go under natural conditions. We
claim to have the right to hold it at a certain level to use
the ordinary storage during certain years.,

Mr. Bartlett: How long can you hold it there at this
high point?

Mr. Meyer: We feel that the right is to hold it there
in order to store the water and improve navigation and power.

Mr. Bartlett: You think the charter gives you the
right of storage as well as the right of power?
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_Mr, Meyer: We decidedlv think so and that it adds to
that right the right to let the lake come up in time of extreme
flood to the level that it would reach in a state of nature and
then recede to this fixed level again at which we could hecld
the water and utilize it. Remember in time of flood the water
is veing relsased at four times the rate, roughly, at which you
can utilize it. We get %two cr three reservoirs full in time of
flood and then for ten years we have emough waver to suffice.

Mr. Bartlett: Does this theory go between you and the
commission engineers?

Mr. Meysr: Not the theory, but the fact as to this
relation between the natural level and the natural rate of
outflow. We have that natural level upon which we can measure
the advantage of regulation.

Mr. Stanley: As I gather it from this plan you have
here of Rainy Lake, the effect of this structure would be at
certain times, by the computations of both the Canadian and
the United States engineers, to raise the level of the lake
above what it would be in a state of naiture?

Mr. Meyer: Yes.

Mr. Stanley: And to lower it at other times Lelow what
it would be in & state of nature?

Mr. Meyer: Yes,

Mr, Stanley: Cen you tell me from an examination of
that map just how many months in the vear this dam would lower

the level of the lake below what it would be in a state of nature?

Mr, Meyer: Only during the flood water months.
Mr. Stanley: Actually lower it?

Mr. Meyer: It would lower it only during the time of
flood water and that would be during the months of June, July
and August of 1927 as shown on the chart.

Mr. Stanley: Those are the months in which it would
raise it above the natural level?

Mr. Meyer: This is the actual level?

Mr. Stanley: This is ahove it? |

Mr. Meyer: But that is the natural level 7t would obtain.

Mr, Stanley: "Actual level" it says hore?

Mr. Meyer: Actual level., But this is the computed
natural level. The dam is there and did hold the water as
shown by the solid line. If the dam were taken away and the
water taken awey, the difference would be shown by the

difference between the two curves. It is very substantial,
amounting to akout two feet in the summer.
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Mr. Stanley: The effect of the structure would be in
the flood months ~--

Mr. Meyer: In occasional years.

Mr. Stanley: -- to raise it above the natural level,
some months below and other months above?

Mr. Meyer: It is a much more uniform level.

Mr. Stanley: Would this uniform level established by
these dams raise or lower the lake above the computed level
in a state of nature? What would be the difference in the
level of the lake as computed after the erection of these
structures and the level of the lake in a state of nature?

Mr. Meyer: Do you mean taking the entire year from
year to year over a long period?

Mr. Stanley: Yes.
Mr. Meyer: The general average would be higher.
Mr. Stanley: How much higher?

Mr. Meyer: I cannot tell you that offhand. That
depends on this relationship that is under discussion. It
might be three feet.

Mr. Stanley: It might be less?

Mr. Meyer: Well, roughly, three feet. Say, call it
thres feet. :

Mr. Stanley: What would be the effect upon the natural
condition of the shore line and the vegetation of the change
of the level established by a state of nature, the raising of
it three feet above this level? What would be the effect
upon the natural shore line, that is upon the beaches that
were established by a state of nature and the vegetation that
had grown up in a state of nature?

Mr. Meyer: Wherever the shores are high and rocky you
could go for miles and tens of miles and possibly several
hundred miles without finding any indication of any change.

I did so in 1914 personally. When you come to a bay or inlet
where there is deep soil, the vegetation will show that it cannot
continue to grow; there will be dead trees in bays and.inlets.

Mr. Stanley: You will kill the vegetation where it
overflows?

Mr. Meyer: Yes.

Mr. Stanley: What would be the effect upon beachses,
sand bays and things of that kind?

Mr. Meyer: The beaches in places wheore there is natural
sand would be covered and the surface removed. For example,
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during the summer of 1916 the western section of the lake hae a
bay that is bordered by sand. That one flood of 1816 stripped
the rubbish off and left the long beach exposed above the normal
level that had been there before the flood., If you go to &
point where there are rocky shores and only a little sand beach,
the sand beach would be obliterated, and if there was a steep
bank behind it, it could never reform. But in some way the
beach will reform, Nature will provide those beaches again
because nature provided it in the first place and it is only a
queetion of time where and when the beaches will reform,

ur, Stanley: Can you tell me how much time?

Mr, Meyer: 1In this case where there is sandy material,
one year will do it and on many lskes the beaches are there.
In other cases I would say it would take pbsgibly two genera—
tions to do it.

: Mr. McCumber:; I can understand the informative value of
ascertaining what the high level would be at the highest in a
state of nature before you had widened this outlet, but inas-
mich ag you already have a charter and that charter fixes the
sea level datum at 1108.61, it seems to me that the real value
now ie to determine ‘whet effect the recommendation made by theé
engineers would havd upor the sltuation that now exists with that
dan there; bebhuse we btart with that dem &s it is submitted to
ubj Hnd the oquestion that 1& submitted i# to what extent, if
dny; we should euthorize the raieing of thé lake above what it
ie now, not by & stdte of nature but with all these gates and 8o
forth and the widening to get rid of the ¢hannel., I could under-
stand it better if your argument were directed towards that point
of where we now begin with 1108.61 and with the dam already erect-
ed and with the gates for increasing the outflow.

Mr. Meyer: But there is this other question that is
specifically asked of your commission to determine the benefits
of present storage. The benefits must involve the basic point
which is the condition of nature.

Mf. McCumbei: I understand that is a different feafure.

Mr. Meyer: On the other feature we could quite neglect
that and coneider the question of additional storage and what
the benefit of additional storage would be compared with the
present. The whole thing goes back to a state of nature for all
comparisons. Supposing you put additional storage on those
lakes, the benefits finally can be measured in a state of nature
both on the Rainy and the Winnipeg rivers.

Ur. McOumber: You say it goes back of that. Here is
the question; 1t is very clear:

"To fegulate the level of Reiny lLake in such a mannef
as to permlt the upper limit of the ordinary range of the
levels to exceed 1108.61 sea level datum,"

and then, if that is found practicable, what elevations afe
recommended. It seems to me we must start with that dem in
Kettle Falle as 1t now is and make your determination upon that
basls.,

Mr. Meyer: Fundamentally I would say yes, but it is
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always difficult to get this measure of advantage and desirabil-
ity. Supvose we go about to prove whether it i1e practicable.
First of all we might consider it practicable to do so if we
consider the physical possibilities. We might consider the
practicability from the physical possibilities' viewpoint. But
from the viewpoint of whether it is economic or not, we must
find some basic plan from which we measure, and if we accept the
dams and a certain type of regulation in the past and then : .
superimpose some new form on this which means additional storage,
we might get some measure that would serve the purpose. I am
not saying that it cannot be done in that way.

Y¥r., McCumber: Your present operations will prevent the
vater ever rising as high as it vould in a state of nature?

Mr. Meyef: If operated as it was operated.

Mr, McCumber: 1If operated properly, and that being the
case, it seems we get rigcht back to the propbeition that we are
to start with the condition as it now exists with all the facil-
ities of getting rid of the surplus water in time of flood and
then determine what is the better method of dealing with the
vhole subject.

Mr. Meyer: But when we come to damages, are we not
faced still with the situation of what would happen in time of
flood if there were no dams there; because if the level, for
example, in a #state of nature,; would go up to this maximum level
which 1g two feet highef, say, than the present level that we
might accept in our answer to this question of prividing atldition-
al storage, we should know, I say, whether it would go up to
that upper level or stay two feet below, because how can we show
the desirability or the cost of this additional rise unless we
have .the condition of nature to compare with the condition of
control?

Mr, McCumber: What was submitted to the commission is,
in my own individual opinion, what damage will result from rais-
ing the level under present conditione and not what that would
have been had thinge been left in a state of nature, because we
have the condition &s it now exists and we are to base our
damages, if I read this matter correctly, for what further
damages there are, upon what may result from rhatever operation
may be agreed upon.

Mr. Meyer: But in determining this cost of raising and
the damage that is done, will we not have to know vhat the level
in a state of nature would have gone up or stayed domwn to?

r, Bartlett: You have to know vhat your original fights
TETE,

Mr. lleyeris Assume our original rights were to hold it to
the level of the ridge. We are now considering the advisability
of raising it two feet higher, When wve consider the advisability
and cost of doing so, ™e must know in a state of nature whether
it got one foot higher or twvo or three feet higher,

Mr. Bartlett: I do not understand vhat it is Major
Bullard has kept you from seeing. What is it that llajor Bullard
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Mr. Meyer: The report sets forth a new relation between
lake level and outflow which results in & conclusion that in a
state of nature in the flood of 1937 ve will say, the lake level
would only have gone to the height of this table, for example,
rhereas according to our conclusions it would have gone two
feet higher.

Mr. Bartlett: We all thought you were seeing everything
we had. What is there you have not seen?

Mr, Meyer: The base data I felt Major Bullard did not
have at that time. Those were the slope readings we made 1in
1916 which are not published and only in blue print form in the
offices of the two commissions with the other field notes, and
go far as I can determine they never came to their attention,
and those slope readings during the flood of 1916 in my estima-
tion absolutely prove the correctness of the curves published
by your engineers and adopted by us in 1917,

Mr. Bartlett: I thought you gave the impression the
commission had not given permission to you to see everything,

r. Meyer:; TWell, the letter that I read from indicates
that those computations for which I asked are not among the
computations that the commission has authorized to be released
to the public. This was the request. I have the anewer here:

mwith reference to the calculations that you have
requested I do not feel that detalled calculations
relating to the engineering phases of the river come
within the scope of the material which the commission
hae authorized this office to release tv the public.®

yr. Bartlett: Who is that from?

Mf. Meyer: From Major Lyman on September 12th in
answer to my request for certain calculations.

Mr. Bartlett: That is this September?
Mf. Meyer;: Yes.

Sir William Hearst:; That refers to calculations made
by the International Board of Engineers, I assuma?

Mr. lleyers Yes.

Sir Tilliam Hearst: And if I wunderstand you corfectly,
your contention is that certain data exist in the offices of the
International Joint Commission that the International Board of
Engineers did not have before them?

Mi. Meyer: That is correct, They are summarized on
this sheet of paper.

Sir William Hearst: You say that by reason of that
lack of information they have gone in error:

UYr. Meyer: That is my belief,



43|

44,

30,
Yr., Bartlett: I should like that cleared up.

Mr. Meyer; Yes, I should like that cleared up and I do
not want any room for doubt about our acceptance of all the
printed, published data of 1929 and 1930 which include the re-
lationship between Rainy Lake outflow and stage, adopted by us in
1917, accepted by Yr. Scovil and Major Crawford in 1929 and 1930
and published in these reports. We accept those; we stand on
those.

Mi. Bartlett: Do you give the impression that the commis-
sion should have permitted you to see something and refused to do
ith

, ; , ‘

Ur. Meyer: I canhot say of course the ¢ommigsion has not
given permission, but epparently the a&tho?ization,tq the engineers
was not sufficient to permit the Duluth office t6 turn over to me
and permit me t6 examine étomputations which I hoped would lead to
our getting together on & common ground respecting this outflow
relationship.

Ur. Bartlett: I expect Mejor Bullard can explain vhat
he means. I do not know.

Mr, Stanley: As I understand you, the data was available,
but not the engineering computations from the data?

Mr. Meyer: The data involved computations and those com-
putations ended, I might say, in a curve of relationship between
natural lake level and outflow. We disagree with those as pub- .
lished this spring in the report of the reinvestigation by lajor
Bullard and his essistante. We agree with the earlier reports and
of course with our own report of 1917. I tried to find out the
reagon for those new deductions and conclusions and tried to get
the detailed computations that were basic thereto.

Mr. Stanley: What I am trying to get at is this: You
were permitted to see the date, the observations made by these
various engineers, as I understand, but not the deductions that
they made from those., Is that correct? The various observations
and lake levels as made by the two governments were available
to you. Is thet correct?

Mr. Meyer: They have become available in this report just
published and in the reports of 1939 and 1930.

Mr. Stenley: But the deductions they drew from those
various observations and levels were not available to you. Ie
that correct? ’

Mr. Meyer:; The deductions so far as expressed in natuial
lake levels were, yes, and they differed from our earlier conclu-
gions, and I tried to find out the reason for this difference.

Mr. Stanley: If the data and the deductions were avail-
able, what were not avallable?

¥r. Meyer: The computations that led up to the deductions.
We disagree respecting the conclusione and I tried to reconcile them,

Mr. Stanley: 1In other words, the observations and recorded
data as to various leke l=vels you have and their conclusions from
that data. TWhat they did wes not to show you how they reached the
conclusions?
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Mr. Meyer: Yes.

Ma jor Lymem: The method used in making these deductions
is described in detail starting on page 202 of our engineers'
report.

Mr. Stanley: Then you had the data and also the conclus-
ions?

Major Lyman: And also the method described.

Mr. Stanley: He only wants to know how you reached those
conclusions.

Ma jor Lyman; The method is described in the engiheer's
report. ‘

Mr. Staniey: Was that data available?

Ma jor ILyman: Yes.

Mr. Stanley: 1 believe you have stated this, but I did
not catch it correctly. Just state aguin for the recard wherein
you differ from these various engineers in the 1932 report in
your conclusion as to lake levels and inflow and outflow from the
conclusions reached by these engineers.

Mr. Meyer: We differ respecting all the computed natural
lavels for Namakan lake, Rainy lake, Lake of the Woods. Ve
therefore disagree as to the basic point from which benefits and
costs must be measured, which is the state of nature.

Mr. Stanley: What is that difference, I mean in feet and
inches?

Mr. Meyer: That difference amounts to two feet during the
flood of 1927, which in my judgment is of the utmost importance.
The difference is not serious so far as low water is concerned.

We differ respecting all the computations leading up to the
deduction of ordinary high water mark on those lakes, because they
involve what we consider are faulty premises, I have stated that

I believe the reason for that is that these slope readings taken
during the flood of 1916 did not come to the attention of Major
Bullard and his assistants when they were making these computations
because these computations absolutely controvert the report of

1917 and the reports of your engineers of 1929 amd 1930 so far as
natural lake levels on Rainy Lake, Namekan Lake and Lake of the
Woods are concerned.

Mr. Stanley: As I understand yocu, you differ with them as
to the height of high water in certain months during the flood of
1927. 1Is that right?

Mr. Meyer: That is cne of thse points,
Mr. Stanley: During what period did that last?
Mr. Meyer: It lasted all summer from some time in the

month of May until some time in September, but the difference has
continued during the ysars.
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Mr. Stanley: To my mind the practical point is: Can you
state to us what would be the difference in the production of
hydro electric power expressed in horse power, by the proposed
structures under your calculations and under the calculations of
the Commission's engineers?

Mr. Meyer: So far as the amount of power is concerned, I
presume there will be relatively little difference. So far &s the
cost of that power is concerned, there will be a tremendous diff-

erence.
Mr. Stanley: Can you state what will be the horse power?

Mr, .Meyer: I am sorry; I finished this work on the train
coming over. It is such a tremendous subject and it has only been
possible for me to get that in the last few weeks when I saw these
differences between your earlier reports and the last report. I
have been working on the 1929 amd 1930 reports which I have
accepted, ,

Mr. Stanley: You see our point of view, We want to find
out the practical results.

Mr. Meyer: Surely, and I say I think we can iron these
things out. If the view is that I have been furnished with every-
thing I need, then we will have to carry our fight to your
Commission; we will have to carry our differences to your Commis-
sion, because I am unalterably opposed to the acceptance of these
computed naturel levels as I have stated.

Mr. Stanley: Mr. Chairmen, would it be advisable at this
time to go into the gquestion upon which Mr. Meyer has made
certain suggestions as to the difference between the proposed
structures to be erected under present conditions and the dams
recommended by Mr. Backus amd others previously to this Commission?
We have been considering up to this time various projects involv-
ing certain costs and the development of & certain amount of hydro-
olectric power. Now Mr. Meyer says they have sbandoned those pro-
jects amd propose other structures less costly and developing less
hydro-electric power, Whether it is important to go into that
question at the present time or not while he is on the stand I do
not know. If it is we had better take it up now.

Sir William Hearsts I did not understand Mr. Meyer to make
any dofinite statement as to what he felt the development ought to
be at the present time. I may have misunderstood him,

Mr. Meycr: You are quite right., What littlo time I have
had has bcen absorbed in these computations trying to reconcile
our diffcrences and my inability to do so. I lmve not had time to
continuc the studies of the projects. I did present to your
engineers, however, preliminary conclusions for the spring of 1931
respecting what we then thought probably would be the projects ’
that we would feel from our viewpoint to be desirable assuming,
of course, that those who benefit would have to pay and that we -
would be among those who would be largely benefited and were wilkle
ing and are now looking at it from that viewpoint.
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Mr. McCumber: Assuming, Mr. Meyer, that you agree entirely
with the 1929 and the 1930 reports made by the enginsers, could
you not supply the Commission with a proposal that you think
should be the proper proposal based upon those figures so we
could compare that with what they have reported tuv us?

Mr. Meyer: I would be very glad to do that.
Mr. McCumber: How long would that take?

Mr. Meyer: If we can sect aside the results of the re«
investigation so far as base data are concerned emd accept the
data so far as they were published in 1929 and 1930, dependent
somewhat upon accessibility of the Receivers and the length of m-
time they will need to consider the matter, I think I can get my
conclusions to them inside of three or four weeks easily.

Mr. McCumbsr: You have already indicated that so far as
you are concerned if there is any agreement between you and the
engineers it must be a surrender on thoir part to your views; and
if it should happen that they would not surronder their views it
might be well for you to furnish the Commission with your views
on the assumption that we should follow the 1929 and 1930 reports.

Mr; Meyer: 1 would be glad to do that.

Me jor Bullard: Mr. Chairman, I should 1like to reply to
one or two of the points that Mr. Meyer has raised. I can not
undertake to and I do not think the Commission would care to have
me discuss all of the points considered. I would like to espec=-
ially emphasize the points that Senator McCumber has just made.

When I first reported to this Commission, in 1928, four
yeers ago, a request was made of Mr, Meyer for a definite plan of
what his clients proposed to do. That request has been repeated
from time to time. There have no doubt been reasons based on Mr.
Meyer's clients or other elements which heve prevented or inter-
fered with the establishment of any definite plans on his part;
but the fact remains that to date I have reccived nothing in the
way of a definite plan.

Mr. Meyer mede reference to a plan which wes turnsd over
to me in 1831, I believe he said -- I do not remember the exact
time. That plen as presented to me, &s I understand it, wes an
outline of various dams, lake lcvcls and so forth, which it was
suggested that the cngineors of the Commission could present and
could thereby be made subjoect to discussion. It was not the
plan, as I understood it, that Mr. Meyer or his clients were
presenting for their own projects.

Now Mr. Meyer seys that he disagrees and he implies that
we must agree or he will feil to agree with us. However, he
believes that the 1929 report is correct. Such being the case,

I seo no objection to his meking a definite plean based on what he
believes to be correct and presenting it to the Commission. I
believe that we will get very much quicker results if such & plan
is presented,

Mr. Mocycr: Has suggestcd that the cngincers of the Commis-
sion have not placed their cards on the table., I do not remember
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that Mr. Moyer has cver placed a single cerd on the table.
Mr, Bertlett: What cards have you not put on the table?

Has thoere been any time that you refused him data or in-
formation as to wnat you were doing¥

M8301 Bullard: Detailed comput tations showing the aciual
carryirg out of methods have not been offered or given to him,
The deia on which he can reproducs those calculations, the
metliods by which they were obtained, and the final results have
all been made available to him.

Mr., Meyer: Mr. Chairmen, the inference made by Major
Bullard is that I presented in Chicago at our conference a plan
for discussion which wasmt to be our plan., I hold in my hand,
"Outline of General Plan for Upper Reiny Improvements. A. Stor-
age Projects. Lac Lecroix: Low Water; High Water; Range; Stor-
age; Approximate Natural Low Water; High Water: Range,"

And so on the same information for Basswood, for Crooked,
for Saganaga, for Northern Light in Canada, for Sturgeon in
Canada,

"B, Power Projects. Location. Crooked Lake: Approximate
Head; Approximate Dependable Flow; Approximate Power,

"lLac Lacroix: Approximete Head; Approximate Dependable
Flow; Approximate Power."

The same for Sturgeon Leke, Caneda, You will note two
developments on the boundary. "Type of Regulation Proposed. Our
Suggesticns. Storage Suggestions. Our Considerations. The Trice
Cf Stcam Power Incidental. Figurecs on Which We Base Qur Conclu-
sions Respecting the Adviszability of Certain Power Developments,
Cost of Cleering. Power Development Sugeestions." Four pages.

I consider thet that was the gist of our project. I con-
sider it so today. It is up to the Receivers to find time to
hear me and consider the matter end pass on it. I am powerless to
submit any pLOJeCt until my clients have an opportunity to pass
upon the project.

Mr. Bartlett: That was presented by you to whom?

_ Mr. Meyser: To Major Bullerd and Mr. Scovil's représentat—
ive, Mr. Strome, on April 28, 1921. -

Mr. Bartlett: Have you any objection to that going into
the record? K

Mr. Meyer: I have no objection %to that going into the
record. It was prepared rather hurriediy far their use and in-
formation, and I shell be glud to go over it and furnish a cobpy.

‘ Sir William Hearst: The Secretary of the Commission in-
forms me that there ars copies of that on file with the Commission,

ﬂMrﬂ Meycr: I want it understood that this today must be my
owrn and can not be my clients’,
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Sir William Hcarst: Wo undcrstand that.

Me jor Bullard: There is one thing I should like to edd.
If there is anything that I havoe scid that could be construcd &s
o reflection on Mr. Meyer porsonally, I would like especially to
indicate that such was not my intention. I have the highest
regard for Mr. Meyer.

Mr. Meyer. Thank you, and I am sure¢ I do not consider it
z personal matter at all. I have been limited by the cards I
could put on the table. You people want to know what my clients
have to say. Incidentally, you may be interested in my own Vviews.

Mr. Bartlett: They did presocnt this to you at that time,
Me jor Bullard, did they?

Ma jor Bullard: Yes.

Mr. Bartlett: Was it of assistance in working out your
problems?

Me jor Bullard: It was of very little assistance because
of the reservations with which it was hedged. I wes given to
understand that it was not eny proposition on which the clients
of Mr. Meyer would take any stand.

Mr. Bartlett: It was a tontative guide to work by?

M2 jor Bullard: It was & suggestion and that was about all,
as I understood it.

Mr. Bartlett: It did no harm?

Ma jor Bullard: No; it d4id no harm, but it advanced the
results practicclly not at all.

Mr. Stenley: Let me sce if I understand you and Mr.Meyor.
This memorandum of suggestions as I understand it, contained
ideas of the engineser and not concrete, responsible proposals by
Mr. Backus or any other power company. Is that right?

Major Bullard: I do not remember that any distinction
was made at that time as to whether they were definitely Mr.
Meyer's ideas or those of his clients or both. I was, however,
given clearly to understand that it was by no means a firm pro-
position, but that it was something that we could present and it
would then be subject to discussion and perhaps even criticism by
the clients of Mr, Meyer,

Mr. Stanley: Would you state, Mr., Meyer, to what extent
this is your proposal and to wha t extemt it is the proposal of
your clients?

Mr. Meyer: Mr. Chairman, may I put the situation in this
way: At that time your emgineers had presented no plan whatsoever
respecting storage or power development but had published the
physical data from which others could work. We took the maps
and the physical data and tried to work out some project that in
the light of that information could probably be carried through
if the Commission should later on decide on some such project and
make a certain charge against my clients.
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1 discussed those projects at some length and co-operated
with the other engineers of my clients and went down to Chicago
with this as the best expression of a project that we could make
at that time. There are many other studies to be made. These
mass curve studies had not been made. Data had not been carried
forward., It might be possible that the drought of 1930 and 1931
would produce a low water period in excess of anything we con-
sidered in 1917 or that was considered in 1929 or 1930, and that
provéd to be the case, In other words, there would necessarily
be a revision. How could my clients come before your engineers
and submit a project to which they would sign their names and say,
"We are willing to pay far that thing if you put it through."

Mr. Bartlett. I do not think there is any difference
between you in respect to the procedure.

Mr. Rogers:; Mr. Cheirmen, I would like to say just a word
on behalf of the Receivers. We naturally must retain someone to
advise us as to the technicalities of this matter. The receiver-
ship is an operating receivership. We are interested in deter-
mining what assets of this company are of value; amd it is our
understanding that in order to make that determination we must
determine to what extent power &nd storage,projects can be devel-
oped edonomically. It is our duty to proteét any interests
which the companieés may have in those power sites for this entire
project:. On the dther hand, it is perfoctly safe to say that the
matter is being approached from a purely economical angle.

In order to decide the qucstion -- there are many questions
involved ~-- we have asked Mr. Meyer to advise 'us. The information
he gives us is that one very important metter is the matter of
what the ordinary high water levels of these lakes would be; that
is, in & state of nature. I believe the importance of that
question will appear more foreibly whon the Assistant Attorney
Goneral of the State of Minnesota addresses you, and I believe,
as Mr. Meyer suggested, that the Commission's engineers concede
the importance, the great importance, of that determination. May
I ask Ma jor Bullard if that is not true?

Major Bullard: There is involved in that point a matter of
law upon which I am unqualificd to speak. I have made in the
report a certain assumption with which I know Mr. Wilson will dis-
agree, bul upon which I have had somec small legal advice, and that
is that flowage which has been established prior to the present
time and on which thore is a prosumption that the statute of
limitetions has run, is now cstablishcd in the right of the com-
pany which has causcd the flowage; and that, thcrefore, those
lakes whore flowage now exists tho amount of damege for such
property would apply rather from the cstablished level than from
the natural ordinary high weter mark. That would tend to red+ce
to a very smell amount, I beclieve, the cconomic offect of chcousing
a plan for development.

On the other hand, if my assumption as to the law is in-
correct -~ and it may very well be because I am not versed in the
law -~ the weight of it would be considerably greater. 1 belicve,

59, however, that the determination -«
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of a definitc plan of development need not wait for a decision on
the matter. Does that answer your question, Mr. Rogers?

Mr. Rogers: Not exactly. It is my understanding thatinl929
and 1930 certain reports were published containing what has been
called certain basic data. It is also my understanding that
certain engineers of the Commission subsequent to that time deter-
mined that that information, or at least a part of it, was not
correct or not of any value; and since then a good deal of time and
money have been spent in determining different basic data. I can
not conceive of that being dbne, Major Bullard, by your men or by
you unless you eonsidered it to be of great importance., I do not
krniow ahything at all about the technical features of this matter;
in fact; I had not heard of it until a month ago; but it does seem
to me that the matter must be of importance.

Secondly, if the matter ig of importance it is most
assuredly simply an engineering problem. I should be very much
surprised if these' engifieers in c¢onfergnte would not be able to
agree upon the main features of their differlences. They dre
engineering problems which this Commidsioy probably expects the
engineers to decide and not problems for the Receivers of this
Company to decide.

80 we have to what little extent we have done anything
about it assumed that there would be no dispute as to all computa-
tions of basic data, and that the question to be determined would
ke what projects are feasible, what can be done, in the light of
this published information. I believe that is somewhat the posi-
tion in which the Commission finds itself,

Now, if the change made by the 1932 report as against the
1929 and the 1930 reports is not important, I do not see why we
should have to use it. If it is important I should think it would
be advisable for us to try to find out just what brings about the
difference and try to arrive at some agreement with respect to it.

I might say further that Mr. Backus is not one of the
receivers of this company and that, as I stated in the beginning
the project will be considered, I believe, by the receivers in much
the same way that it would be considered by the Commission; that
is, the same purposes will have to control any determination by
the receivers. Certainly acting as receivers the attitude towards
the plan is impersonal which might be the case with others who
have had considerable to do with the .ntire project.

But my entire point is this, that we have a very difficult
problem, and it seems now &s we are advised by our engineer that
it can not be determined, that the whole matter is up in the air;
whereas the only thing that should be for determination is the
matter of the particular project to be used. I would like very
much to see some sort of an attempt made at least to work out some
basic data which would be satisfactory to all concerned. If it
is not of importance it ought to bc vory ecasy to do so; and if it
is of importance and no zgreemsnt cen be reached, then, of course,
we should not be asked to agrec with conclusions with which we do
not in fact agree.

Mr. Magrath: Mr. Scovil, do you wish to say anything?

Mr. Scovil: I will not say anything at the present time,sir,
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Mr. Bartlett: You have to loave tonight, do you not?

Mr. Scovil: Ycs, sir.

Mr. Winston: I should like tomake my position hcre today
clcar for the sekc of the record. Although I represent the
Quetico Supcrior Council, I am not actually representing them
bocausc I am not in touch with their work. I am simply hcre
intending to listen rather than actually to represent thom. I
focl that limitation in discussing this question., I know if
further consultztions bet: een engincers mcan a prolongetion of
tho decision of this question, it will affect the decision of t
those who bclicve they represent the public. I cannot say dcfinit-
¢ly what that will be, but I should apprehend it will probably be
one which will not be fortunete to thom if this matter has to be
delayed longer. Although I cannot speak for the Council, for
those¢ who roprescnt the public, it does scem to me if they dis-
agree with the engineers' report, it will be their duty to submit
the points of disagreement they have et the time of the hearing,
and I do not see how that cannot be done by the proponcents of the
power project if they in turn pay some attention to what purports
to be the finel report of the enginesers,

Mr. Magrath: I hope you &ll understand that the line the
commission was following was to get the most complete data
possible and have it available for the public, and then give the
public ample time to study it end then give the public ample
opportunity to be heard. That is what we have been working forward
to, &nd you ere not ncerly as anxious to have it disposed of as
we cre beecuse it has been bsfore us for z vory long time.

Sir Williem Hearst: I do not ses how this gentlemen's
clients would be prejudiced by deley. I thought they wanted it
never to happen.

Mr. Winston: If there were & perpetual delay, we would be
delighted, but it is a very difficult thing for an organization
which attempts to represent and express public opinion to carry
on indefinitely, and this has dragged on for a long time and it
is very hard for us to keep up the interust of the public we
represent and also carry on our own work. The representatives
of the Council arc meking studies based upon the reports of the
Engineers which they have at presvnt and which they consider to
bc finel, I do not know what cffcct this change would have., It
might not have eony. I eam epmrcohonsive whethor it might in somo
wey impose difficulties on them and I hope, possibly befare¢ the
commission grants further time for the consideration, that tho
representatives of the public be given an opportunity to explein
what effect it would have upon their side of thec cese. It mey
not be possible, but I would hope that might be done.

Mr. Magreth: Do you gentlemen from Minncsota ccre to be
heard now?

Mr. Wilson: That is acécording to your own wishes. We have
a statcecment of our position which we have prepared. It will tako
some little time to prescnt it. If the commission prcefors to
hezr it now, we are prcpared to go eshoczad.
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Mr. Megreth: If you are properced to go ahead, we will be
pleased to hear you.

Mr. Wilson: We should 1like to get away tonight if we can.

Mr. Magrath: Then start now.

Mr. Wilson: I may say, Mr. Chairman and members of the
Commission, as has been indicated by correspondence that took
placc between Attorney General Bonson of Minnesota and the Wash-
ington office of the commission, the authorities of the state had
not assumed that this moeting of the Commission today would
assumc the proportions of & hearing. They woro advised there
would be a preliminary discussion of tho matteor and that
represcntatives of the statc and othor partics interested would be
welcome with a view to clearing up points with refercnce to any
dIfficulties which might exist and clarifying tho issue; thus
oxpediting the ultimate disposition of this reforence in which
the state of Minnesota is most vitally concerncd.

Mey I say at the outset in order that tho commission may
got a picture of the state intercest that the state has a two-fold
interest in those procoedings; first, in its sgovereign capacity,
with respect to the conservation and protection of tho rights of
the public in the lands and waters effected, respccting navigation,
fishing, recrsation and other general public uscs of those lands
end waters; second, in its propristery capacity with respect to
the state lands bordering on thosc waters. The stete owns, accord-
ing to & rough estimate which we heve just mede, nearly 12,000
acres of land directly bordering on the Reiny Lekc and Namakan
reservoirs, which are now under rogulation by the existing dams
at International Falls and Kettle Fzlls, of which land something
like half has been set aside es state forests, The state hds made
claims for dameges caused by the existing dems to thosce leands cnd
the timber thereon, which cleims are involved in pending lawsuits’
cnd also in statemonts of these claims which were filed with thé
Commission at its request in 1916 and again, I believe, in 1925,
eggrogating upwards of $100.000. The lawsuits for thoso claims
were originelly commenced in 1914 cnd 1916, end tho amounts wero
stated in the claims at an aggregete, I believe, of $275.000.
Those were placed, of course, at outside figurecs becausc complode
investigations had not then been made. Leter at the commission's
request, more detailed ostimetes were filed, cnd s I have said,
thosc estimctes aggregated upwards of $100,000 for demages caused
to tho state lands on Rainy Leke and Nemakan reservoirs by the
existing dams. The state also owns considerable areas on the trib-
utary weters above the Namekan reservoir, practicelly 1l ¢f which
have bsen set aside as state forests. These lands and the timber
thereon will be affected by any storage project which may be
carried out on the upper waters. As I havo seid, practically all
of those lands bordering on the upper waters have been set aside
as stete forests, and I have also alroady stated that approximetely
half of the lands bordering on the existing reservoirs have besn
set aside as stete forests. ‘

Mr. Stanley: That is half the shore line?

Mr. Wilson: No, our estimates are based on the acreage, but '
I assume it would probably amount to half the shore line, not half
the shore line of ths lakes, but half the shore line of the state
lands. I do not know what the proportion is. I asked Ma jor
Bullard this morning if the c¢ngineers had made any estimate of that,
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and he said they had not. That is a matter of detail which can
be submitted at a later time when it becomes advisable to go into
it.

Mr. Stanley: You do not know roughly what it is?

Mr. Wilson: I do not know, but the state does own a very
considerable proportion of the shore line of those existing
reservoirs, a mueh higher proportion than it owns of the shore
line of the Lake of the Woods.

Mr. McCumber:; These are damages that occur from the Kettle

Falls and the International Falls dams?

Mr, Wilson: That is right.

Mr. McCumber: I do not just remember what the laws of the
State of Minnesota are, but is there any statute of limitation
against these claims that runs against the state itself?

Mr. Wilson: I shall have something more to say about that,
but it is the claim of the state that the statute does not run
against the state lands by reason of the fact that they are ad-
ministered lands held under federal grant and subject to the
state constitution, and our Supreme Court respscting appeals held
in a flowage case they are not subject to the application of flow-
age rights by prescription and they may not be otherwise acquired
by advarse process,

Having regard to the fact that the enginecrs in submitting
their final report have suggested that further studies and analyses
of the matters covered by the report may be desirable, and for the
purpose of facilitating preparation for the final hearings by all
parties interested, the 8tate of Minnesota respectfully suggests
that each interested party, and also the commission, if it deems
proper, indicate its position upon the following matters, to which
I shall refer in some detail, I may say that some of these points
have elready been covered by the discussion that has taken place
this morning, as will be seen,

l. Does any party question the correctness of any portion
of the physical data set forth in the engineers' report of the
conclusions based thereson? If so, to what extent eare such
data or conclusions questioned, what further investigations or
studies should be made with reference thereto, and by what
agoncies should such investigations or studies be mads, It &l-
ready appsers that certain of these basic data are very seriously
questioned.

Mr. Rogers: Are they questioned by the state?

Mr. Wilson: ©Not by the state. I have a statement to make
on that; after I heve enumerated those questions which we think
would be helpful in clarifying the issue, I will state the position
of the state upon each of those questions.,

2, Do any of the parties interested in the use of boundary
waters for power production desire to avail themselves of the
plans of regulation end use proposed in the engineers' finel report,
and if" so, are such party or parties prepared to carry out such
proposed plans within a reasonable time if permitted to do so?
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It hes alrcady been indicuted tentatively by Mr. Meyer
here this morning that the principal proponent of the project is
not prepared to avail itself of the proposed plan set forth in the
enginecrs' report, but es Mr. Meyer has said, it remains to be
finally determined by the receiversof the Minnesota and Ontario
Peper Company what their ection will be in that respect.

3. If there is no party ready, able and willing to proceed
with one or other of the recommended plans, do any of said parties
desire a modified plan for the regulation and use of said waters
for power production? If such modified plan is desired, what are
the features thereof?

4, If such modified plan is contemplated,; are the data
contained in the engineers' final report sufficient to answer the
questions of the reference as they apply to such modifisd plan?
If the information given in the engincers' report is not suffi-
cient therefor, what further investigations and studies will be
necessary, and by what agency should such additional investiga-
tions and studies be carried out?

5. Is it contemplated thet under question 4 of the refer-
ence, that is the question relating to the ascertainment of the
cost of the storage friom the existing dams and the allodation of
the bengfits therefrom, the dameges suffersd by the State of
Minnesota and by individual land owrer# from the past maintenance
and ogeration of thé dems at International Falls and Kettle Falls
will be determined, regardless of the operation of any statute of
limitations, end that & method for the settlement of such deameges
will be recommended?

The amswer to that question is obviously of vital importance
to the stete in order that the state may determine what action it
should take with respect to its own damage claims, and it is like-
wise of importance to the individual settlers who have claims
pending, for reasons that I shall elaborate, with your permission,
a little later,

6. Is it contemplated that the regulation of the Rainy
Lake reservoir below elevation 1108.61, sea 1level datum, and the
regulation of the Namakan reservoir below 1120.11, sea level datum,
will be inquired into and recommendations meds with reference
thereto, in case no recommendations should be made for regulation
of said waters above said levels, respectively? If so, what plan
of regulation of said waters is desired by the parties interested
therein?

That Zoes to a matter which has already been the subject
of considerable discussion here this morning, and it is a matter
in which both the state generally and & large number of its
settlers are very vitally concerned.

7. 1Is it contemplated that under the prescnt reference
the feasibility and desirability of having the regulation of Lake
of the Woods as well as the waters referred to in the reference
brought under the control of a single internztional body will be
inquired into and recommendations made with reference thereto?

That matter has also been reforred to incidentally in the
course of this morning's discussion. The position of the State
of Minnesota, in so far as we are now able to indicate it, upon
the foregoing matters is as follows:
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1. This relates to the accuracy of the enginecrs’ report.
The representatives of the state are not prepared &t this time to
express any definite opinion as to the correctness or incorrect-
ness of any particuler portions of the data or conclusions set
forth in the engineers' report.

However, we agree with the other gentlemen who have
already discussed that subject this morning that it is vitally
important to all concerned that any differences respecting those
besic data should be reconciled, if it is at all possible, in
order that all parties may have the foundation upon which to
procced.

2¢ With respect to the readiness of any interested

parties to avail themselves of the ptans of regulation and use of
the boundary waters proposed in the engineers' final report, it

73. 1s the position of the State of Minnesota that unless someone is
prepared to carry out such plans within a reacsonable time, it
would be a waste of effort on the part of the commission and all
parties interested in the reference to prepare for hearings on
the proposed plans or to give any further consideration thereto.
Obviously it would be a difficult, laborious and expensive task
for all of the interests involved to fletermine how they will be
affected by the far-reaching changes in natural conditions which
will result if the plans set forth in the engineers' report
should be carried out, If no one is ready, willing and able to
carry out those plans, they may as well be eliminated from consid-
eration,

In this connection the representatives of the state call
attention to the fact that the matters involved in the reference
have been a subject of public and private concern for over twenty
years, and that the reference has been pencing beforc the commis-.
sion for over seven years, during which a state of uncertainty
has existed as to the future disposition of the lands and waters
affccted, We respectfully urge that in tho interests of the
public as well as of private parties concerned, both in the United
States and Ceamada, it is desirable that the matter be brought to

74. an early conclusion, and that to that end the questions at issue
should be concretely defined and further considoration confined
thereto,.

3. With respect to any proposed modified plan, if any
modified plan is desired, it is the position of the State of
Minnesota that the par.y or parties interested therein should sub-
mit a complete and detailed proposal of such modified plan
immedia tely, so that the state and othor parties concerned may
have sufficient opportunity to dotermine the effect thereof upon
their respective interssts and may prepare for final hearings
before the commission accordingly. It is obvious that if the
various interested parties should prepare for hearings on the
assumption that a certain plan is to be considered, and it should
later develop that some different plam is desired, much of the
time and labour spent on previous preparetion will have been wasted,
and further delays will result. We therefore suggest that if any
modified plans are contemplated, they should be declared at once.

I understand from what Mr. Meyer has seid, he will be rezdy
speedily to outline such a plan to his clients and to obtain their
determination with respect thereto within a2 short time.
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4, With respsct to amy cdditional investigations and
studies which may be required in case modified plans are p?oposed,
the question may well be raised whether any further expenditure
of public funds therefor would be justified, in view of the large
amounts already expended upon the investigations and studies which
have been made., However, if modified plans should be proposed,
and if the commission should deem them worthy of consideration,
the State of Minnesota would submit that any further investigations
and studies necessitated thereby should, insofar as the public
interest may be affected, be made by the commission's engineers
under the dircction of the commission with as much dispatch as
possible. Other studies and investigations not requiired for the
protcetion of the public interest should be promptly mede by the
intorecsted parties at their owh experse.

By With respect to the settlemcnt of past damage claims
based upon the maintenance and operation of the existing dems at

International Falls and Kettle Falls, it is the position of the

State of Minnesota that provision should be made in the course of
these proceedings for the determination of the amount of such
claims. The state respectfully submits that the commission is
authorized and required to make such determination under question
4 of ths reference. The state further submits that it would be
proper and desirable for the commission to recommend a suitable
method for the settlement of such claims after the amount therec-
of has boeen ascortained. ,

-

In this ‘connection the state respsctfully calls attention
to cortain circumstances and ocvents bearing on the question, and
I would ask the commission to indulgo me with their patience while
I revicw briefly certain matters which are familiar to certein
membors of the commission, but perhaps not to those who have
become members in later years.

In the first place, experience gained in the trial of law-
suits which were brought by individual land owners upon their
deamage claims demonstrated that the ordinary machinery of the law
was inadequate to secure redress under the peculiar and complicated
circumstances which existed: In the ordinary course of legal pro-
ceedings, each individual land owner would be obliged to obtain
and produce in court all the evidence necessary to prove the
liability of the operator of the dams for the maintenance of the
dameging water levels, in addition to the evidence of the actual
damages wh ich ho sustained. This process would have to be repeat-
ed in each case. Experience showed that the trial of an avcrage
case of an individual land owner might be expected to consume two
weeks or more in court. The cost of such proccedings to the
individual land owners would be all out of proportion to the
amounts involved, and in most if not all of the cases the expense
would be practically prohibitive. The texpayoers of the county in
which the trials werc lzid would also be subjected to an excessive
burden on account of the cost of meinteaining the courts and jurios.

Ordinarily when such & project is undortaken the proponent
either scocures the nccessary rights and settles damage claims in
edvance, or, after obtaining the requisito authority, institutes
condemnation proceedings, in which his liability is conceded or
ascertained once and for all, and an expeditious method is afforded
for the determination of the individual claims for damages.

Usuelly it is considered, as a matter of right, that the party who
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desirés to use the property of others for his own bencfit through
such an undertaking has the burden of making provision for Jusp
compensation in advance., The projects in question, however, did
not take thet course. The dams were constructed and have been
operéted ever since without securing any considerable flowage
rights and with no settlement of damage ciaims except in an in-
significant number of cases, No flowage rights were secured on
any state lands, nor has the state received any compensation for
damages thereto.

Mr, Bartlett: Are the suits pending?

Mr. Wilson: The state lawsuits ere still pending and I
think a considerable number of the private lawsuits are still
pending. ‘ '

For the most part the injured lanfl owhers were left to
sesk such remedies as the law afforded.

Many of the individuel land owners, as well as the state,
commenced actions for damages during the years from 1914 to 1917,
The state first brought an action in 1914 for $200,000 damages
alleged to have resulted from the dam at International Falls., In
1917 a second action was brought for $25,000 additional damages
alleged to have been caused by the International Falls dam since
the commencement of the first action. A third action was brought
in 1917 for damages alleged tc have been caused by the dams at
Kettle Falls. The claims covered by these three actions, aggreg-
ating $275,000) were based on general estimates, Later, s I have
already indicated, after a more careful oxamination had boen made,
estimates putting the demeges at over $100,000 were filed with
the International Joint Commission., :

As hes been said, the legal proceedings proved inadequate.
The late John E. Samuelson, Esq., attorney for a large number of
the privete land owners, appeared at the final arguments before
this commission on the Lake of the Woods reference at Washington,
in 1916, and stated, referring to his previous experience in court,
that the inefficacy of the law, with its expense and delays, was
such that he did not believe that the settlers would be able to
obtain justice through the actions which they had commenced., It
is obvious that in the state's cases, involving altogether over
four hundred separate parcels of vacant wild land scattered around
the shores of a number of different lakes, the difficulties would
be vastly greater than in the cases of individual settlers, whose
lands were in use and were under more or less constant observation,.
It scemed that unless some new mechinery could be created for in-
vestigating and settling the damage claims by practical methods
adapted to the situation, both the state and the individual land
owners would be helpless to secure anything like adequato redress.

The first intimation that & solution might be found through
proceedings before this commission came from the commission itself
at & hearing held on the Lake of the Woods reforence at Inter-
national Falls in September, 1915. Representatives of the stateo
and of the individual ssttlers having lands on Rainy Lzke and
tributery waters appeared at that hearing, without any particular
expectation that their damage claims would be considered. They
were told by the commission that definite information was wanted
as to the value of the lands affected by the flowate on Reiny Lake
and other upper weters, and were allowed further time for.
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furnishing such information. Written statements of the claims

af the state and of various individuel settlers were thereafter
filed with the commission, and further hearings were held in the
winter of 1916, at which the state officials and the settlers,

with their attorneys, appeared and testifiod in support of their
claims. At the final arguments on the Lake of the Woods reference
held at Washington in April, 1916, appeared repruvsentatives of the
state and of the settlers and wged the commission to make some
special provision for the settlement of the damages on Rainy

lake 2nd other upper waters, &s well as on Lake of the Woods,
pointing out the practiceal impossibility of securing relief in
court. Members of the commission then intimated that such pro-
vision might be made, but .o official action was teken at that
time. The final repart of the entire commission on the Lake of the
Woods reference, filed in 1917, though it deelt with the matter of
damage claims on Lake 6f the Woods, failed to deal with the damage
claims or other c¢onerets problems involving Rainy Lake &nd its
tributaries, The American members of the commission made & supple-
mental report containing more or less detailed recommendations
with respect thereto.

Mr. Bartlett: Dif the commission assess damages in the
case of the Lake of the Woods?

Mr. Wilsoh: The Commission rebommended provision should be
made by the United States government for ascertaining all those
danages, and provision has been made and it is now being carried
out.

Mr. Bartlett: By what agency?

Mr. Wilson: The War Department, I believe, was directed to
ascertain the damages, and the government also instituted condemn-
atory proceedings for the acquisition of the necessary flowage
rights, for which appropriations have been made, I believe so far
no appropriations have yet been made for the payment of the past
damages, but it is eXpected that some day, after they have besen
ascertained, such appropriation will be made by Congress.

Mr. McCumber: What is the cause of the delay? Why has
Congress not made the appropriation?

Mr. Wilson: I think Major Bullard could exXplain that
better than I caen. I think he is more familiar with it.

Mr. McCumber: I do not want to interfere with your line of
argument at all, ‘

Mr. Wilson: I have appeared as counsel for the state in
the condemnetory proceedings, but we were interested primarily in
the matter of flowage rights and have not teken any active part
respecting damage claims.

Mr. McCumber: I will not press the qQuestion.

Mr. Bartlett: The point is the United States government
assumed the damages. ‘
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Mr. Wilson: That was done pursuant to the treaty respect-
ing the Lake of the Woods. Canada forwarded the United States a
certain sum of money under that treety and under its agreement
with the Unitsd States was to assumc the responsibility for
securing flowage rights and settling damege claims.

Mr. Bartlett: Are suits pending against this corporation?

Mr. Wilson: Yes. On Reiny Leke it is different. On the Leke
0l the Woods the:government brought blanket condemnatory proceed-
ings in which all appeared and submitted proof of their claims
without the necessity of proving liability for the damege levels
which wes admitted in advence.

Mr. Bartlett: But these suits ydu speak of now?

Mr. Wilson: Those were brought against the Minnesota and
Ontario Power Company, which by change of name has become the
Minnesota and Ontario Paper Company, the association now in re-
ceivership which is responsible for the operation of the existing
dams.

Mr, Bartlett: Were they trespass suits?

Mr, Wilson: They were damage suits. They were not brought
exactly for trespass or ejectment, but they were damage suits for
the results of the overflow which occurred from the dam at Inter-
national Falls up to the year 1914, Tha t damage was covered by
the first bunch of suits that were brought. Later, in 1917, the
state brought another suit for further damages caused by the dam
at International Falls. In the meentime the dam at Kettle Falls
hed gone into operation, and in the same year, the spring of
1917, the state brought & suit for damages to its land on
Namaekan caused by the t dam.

Mr. Bartlett: Are they still pending?

Mr. Wilson: They are still pending, for reasons I shall
discuss.

Mr. Bartlett: In what court?
Mr, Wilson; In the district court.
Mr. Bartlett: Did they try injunction proceedings?

Mr, Wilson: No, I shall have something to say
ebout that.

Mr. McCumber: The government condemned the lands for the
Lake of the Woods.

Mr., Wilson; That is pursuant to the treaty.
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Mr. McCumber: And under that treaty the government of
the United States werc to pay for those lands to the owners?

Mr. Wilson: Yes, after having received a sum of money
from Canada,

Mr. McCumber: And all these years have passed and the
Government has not eppropriated the money to do it?

Mr. Wilson: Appropriztions have been made for payment
for the future flowage but not for the past damage claims whioh
amount to something in addition to the flowage., That is, the
various settlers on the Lake of the Woods claimed that since
the government undertook the responsibility for this flowage,
their lands have been damaged from time to time in various
respocts. They have lost the use of their lands and their
crops have been flooded or they have been prevented from
cultivating their land, and they are entitled to temporary
damages by reason of those dams, and they are also entitled to
permanent compensation for damage to flowage rights over their
lands, which is being teken cere of in compenseation proceed-
ings.

Mr. Bartlett: Did Canada pay the money to
somebody?

Mr. Wilson: I believe Canada paid the money to the
United States. I believe it was provided Canada should pay
something over $300,000.

Mr. Bartlett: And the United States has not made the
distribution yet?

Mr. Wilson: It is all appropriated in case the courts
should decide in certain cases Canada should pay certain sums.
Thet was by reason of the fact the power development on the
Lake of the Woods weas entirely in Camada.

Mr. Bartlett: And the Americem Congress has not done
its part?

Mr. Wilson: I am not in a position to state that,
because I do not know whet the totel zmount has aggregated, nor
would I assume to say what the liability on the part of the
American government would be.
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Mejor Bullard: Since %the question has been raised

I think it might be disposed of. The appropriation that

Mr. Wilson has indicated has been made and is being disbursed to
pay for the easement, the right to continue the flowage in the
future on tne Lake of the Woods. The report on the past damage
claims recommending payment, under certain conditions, of some
seventy-odd thousand dollars was submitted to the last Congress,
end I believe was passed over due Lo press of other work.,

Mr. Bartlett: Has the United States got the Canadian
money? Were they to share equally?

Major Bullard: In the matter of flowage ecasement
Canada undertook to pay, and has paid, to the United States
some $275,000, with an additional undertaking to pay half of
anything over that amount. The United States has appropriated
$375,000 to put to that $273,000, and that amount is now being
disbursed,

Mr. Wilson: I think I have stated, refserring to the
fact that the report of the Lake of the Woods Reference failed
to deal with the questions forming the Rainy Lake upper waters,
that the American members made another report containing more or
less detailsd recommendetions with respect to those waters above
the Lake of the Woods,

Thereafter the representatives of the state and of the
settlers continued their efforts to secure some provision far the
settilement of their damage claims through proceedings before the
Commission, believing that as long as there was any prospect of
gotting action in that way it was better to work for that end,
suspending proceedings in tho law sults in the meantime.

The power interests operating the dams in question also
worked for the submission of the matter to the Commission and con-
sented to the continuance of the law suits. Those interests have
never attempted either to bring the cour! actions on for trial or
to secure a dismissal thereof, but on tho contrary have both ex-
pressly and tacitly acquiesced in keeping the suits in a state of
suspense, pending the determination of these proceedings before
the Commission.

In the meantime, during all the years that have elapsed
since the dams were constructed, the powser interests have had the
benefit of using without compensation the shore lands of the state
and of the private land owners for water storage and power purposes
from time to time as occasion required. 1In effect, the power inter-
ests have repeatedly, though nct continuously, trespassed upon
these lands and have appropriated them to their own use without
authority of law whenever 1t served their purposes to do so.

The power interests may and doubtless will, as has been
indicated here this morning, contend  that they have had lawful
authority from the governments ol the United States amd Canada to
maintein and operate the dams. They claim the right, under such
authorization, to raise the Xevels of the Rainy lLake resservoir and
the Namakan reservoir tc the elevations specified in the reference,
1108.61 and 1120.11, respectively. The state answers that in so
far as these lovels are above the natural ordinary high water
marks, as they appear to be from the engineer‘s report amd from
evidence gathered by the state such governmental authorization
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was illegal and void. The state further contends in this
connection that the authority of the United States government
to regulate the water levels up to the ordinary natural high
water marks was limited to regulation for navigation and other
related public uses, and that the government had no power to
authorize private interests to interfere with the naturdl

level and flow of the waters for any othefr purpose in such
manner as t¢ injure gtatd or private property. Neverthdless,
as I have said, the powet intereste have &ssumed to control the
waters in question for their own benefit tinder the guis? of
governmental amthority, without any adequate provision for
determining the rights of property owners affested or for serving
the general interests of the public in the waters.

That such an astonishing situation has been permitted
to exist for so many years can only be explained by the fact
that the state and the privete land owners concerned were led
to believe that the whole matter would be settled within a
comparatively short time through the proceedings before the
Commisgsion. It was not anticipated that so long a period as
has now elapsed would be required.

The engineers in their report have assumed, for the
purpose of determining the cost of the existing storage in the
Rainy Lake and Namakan reservoirs, that necessary flowage rights
have been acquired by prescription, and inferentially, that
damage claims have outlawed, excep% as to those land owners who
have kept their rights alive by the maintenance of actions at
law., The State of Minnesota respectfully submits that this
agsumption is at least questionable in the matter of law, and
that in any event it was beyond the province of the engineers
to make such an assumption, in the absence of an authoritative
determination by the courts.

The State further says that certain land owners have
lost their rights by prescription or limitation; but provision
should, nevertheless, be made for the determination and payment
of damages to all who would legally have been entitled thereto
but for the operation of the statutes of limitation, in view of
the peculiar and complicated circumstances of this case as here-
inbefore outlined.

In this connection the State does not assume to suggest
that the method used in settling the Lake of the Woods clalms
or any other particular method should be recommended or followed
in the present matter, The B8tate does, however, most strongly
urge that in view of the altogether unusual circumstances which
have been pointed out and in consideration of the long period of
uncompensated use of the waters in question which the power
interests have enjoyed, and of such further use of the waters as
mey hereafter be lawfully permitted, those interests should be
required to make just and equitable settlement of all demages to
which the land owners would lawfully have been entitled, regard-
less of the operation of any statutes of limitetion.

In this connection the Attorney General of Minnesota
desires to meke i1t clear that he has no authority to act for any
private land owner in the prosecution of his claim, and he
assumes no such authority. However, he deems it within his
province as the legel representative of the State to meke the
foregoing representations in behalf of the 8tate and of all its



40.

93. citizene who may be affected by the matters in question.

6., With respect to the regulation of the Rainy Lake Reser-
voir and the Namskean reservoir below the elevationg specified
in the Reference, 1108.681 and 1130.11, respectively, it is the
position of the State that such regulation is necessarily in-
volved with the determination of the questions of the Reference
respecting those waters, and that if further regulation of those
waters below those levels by means of the existing dams is to go
on, such regulation should be inquired into and recommendatione
made with reference thereto, regardless of what action may be
taken with respect to higher 1lévels,

~As alreedy pointed out, the 8tate contends that the past
regulation of the waters controlled by the existing dams under
the guise of governmental authority has been without legal -
sanction in so far as the waters have been raised by the dams to
any extent above the natural ordinary high water marks. The
State further contende that in so far as the dams have interfered
with the natural level and flow,of the Waters below the ordinary
natural high water matkse, sucH. interference, to the extent that
it may have injured state or private groperty;;has been illegal
except in so far as it may have been lndertakén with proper
governmental authority for the benhefit of navigatiot or other
public uees of the waters.

In that connection, I may say, in answer to the question
9%. that Mejor Bullard raised, that we deem it to be the fundamental
law in Minnesota and in most of the States of the Union, recég-
nized by the Supreme Oourt of the United States, that the public
waters belong to the States. At least such is the law in the
#tate of Minnesota; and the fact that such ie the law in that
State has been expressly recognized by the Supreme Oourt of the
United States; and that the right of the Government to control
to any extent public navigeble waters is limited to control for
purposes of navigation and other recognized public uses. And we
contend that the Government has no authority to authorize any
private corporation or individual to interfere with the netural
level or flow of public waters even below the ordinary high water
mark in such manner as to injure property. '

Mr. Bartlett: Was any considerable part of the lend that
was overflowed tillable land that was really valuable? '

Mr. Wilson: Not on Nameskan Lake. There was considerable
demage to land on Rat Root River, and there was very extensive
demage to valuable hay meadows,

Mr, Bartlett: Where were they?

94, Mr, Wilson: They were both on the Rat Root River and on
Kabetogama Lake. The Rat Root River runs into Black Bay, which is
an arm of Ralny Lake, and Kabetogams Lake runs into Namakan Lake.
There were very extensive hay meadows on which valuable crops of
wild hay had been cut for years which has been practically des-
troyed., ' : ‘

Mr., Bartlett: Are there any sults pending by the land
owners around the shores of Rainy Lake itself where they may have
flooded near residences, buildings, or factories?
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43, Wilson: I think there are some.
Mr. Bartlett; 'ere there any suits brought in Canada?

Mri W ilson: There were some suits brought in Canada, but
ag to the disposition of all of them I have no definite information.
I know there were some suits brought in Canada but as to how many
I cannot say.

Mr, Bartlett: I had not thought that the gquestion of
damage was vefore thie Commission. Do you think it is under the
present Reference?

UMr. Wilson: That is our contention for the reasons
which I am indicating. Question 4 of the Reference directa the
Commission to ascertain the cost of additional storage and what
intereste are benefited thereby. We deem the matter of damage to
be inherently involved in that question b6f the Reference, But
there are & few further considerations which I can dispose of now
within a few minutes if the Commission wishes tbv hear this further,

We call attention to some further considerations in respect
to the operation of thebe existihg dams, and that is that the
operation of these dame, without supervision by any international
body constituted to secure propet trec¢ognition of the interests of
the public and of the rights of property owners, has been highly
unsetisfactory. As lajor Bullard has indicated alréady, veéry
little attention has been paid to that by the United States author-
itieg. These additional considerations support the position of the
State as already indiceted on this point. ‘

7. With respect to bringing the regulation of Lake of the Toods
and the waters mentioned in the present Reference under the control
of a single body, i1t is the position of the State of Minnesota that
since the level of Laxe of the Woods must necessarily be materially
affected by any regulation of Rainy Lake or other tributary waters,
the regulation of the entire chain of waters of the Lake of the
Woode watershed, in so far as such regulation may be lawfully
authorized, should be brought under unified control.

8. The Attorney General of linnesota desires to say that he
has no authority to determine the policy of the 8tate with respect
to the regulation or use of the waters in question for navigation
or for power purnoses or for any other purposes, and that no state-
ment herein made on his part should be construed as indicating the
position of the State either for or agasinst such regulation or use.
Authority to determine the policy of the State with respect to those
matters is vested in the state legislature and in the Department of
Conservation, whose representatives are here.,

Yr. Bertletti: Do you not think that they should be
declared by thie time?

Mr., Wilson: I may finish by saying that that is subject to
the provisions of the 8tate Constitution. In respect to their
declaring their policy, I might say, in view of the fact that the
engineers! report has been completed in the interim between sessions
of the legislature, the legiselature could not very well have declar-—
ed ite policy, and, inasmuch as this Department of Conservation was
newly created by the legislature, it could not very well have
declared a policy. Before this Department of Conservation was
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created and vested with jurisdiction over lands, waters, timber
and minerals of the State we had no body which had authority to
declare policies of the State except the legislature or the people
through the .Constitution; and on account of the fact that the
engineers! report has only recently been filed, there has not been
opportunity for such declaration.

It ia the positicn of the Attorney General that as soon
as the lssues involved in the Reference have been defined and the
basic facts pertinent thereto have been determined, he will submit
them to the Department of Conservation, and also, if necessary,
to the State iegislature, in order to enable them to take such
action as they deem proper with respect to the policy of the
State upon the questions of the Reference. The International
Joint Commission will be duly advised of any action which may be
taken in the matter by the Conservation Department or by the
State legislature,

Mr., Bartlett: Does the Federal Act declare a policy
with respect to this whole matter?

Mr. Wilscn: The Bhipstead-Newton-Nolan Bill, to some
extent, declares a policy by providing that the waters bordering
on the lands of the Superior National Forest shall not be inter—
fered with in any way without the consent of Congress, except
certain small lakes which are not involved in this Reference. 8o
to that extent Congrees has declared its position in the matter.

Mr. Bartiett: And your position would not be contrary
to that? .

Mr, Wilson; Our position would not be contrary to thet,
no, sir; 1in fect, the legislature of the State of Minnesota by
resolution adopted, I think, at the 1939 session memorialized
Congress to pass the Shipstead-Newton-Nolan Bill, To that extent
the legislature has gone on record to the effect that the waters
of the Buperior National Forest, which includes & considerable
part of the waters here in guestion, should not be interfered .
with without the consent of the United States.

9., Regardless of what may be officially determined
as the policy of the State with respect to the questions of the
reference, the Attorney General of Minnesota deems it his duty
to maintein all legal rights of the State which may be involved,
both with respect to the State's claims for demeges to its
lands and with respect to the general rights of the public in the
conservation and uee of the waters in question and the state
lands and forests bordering thereon,

In this connection the Attorney General calls attention
to the fact that the state lande affected are trust lands, in-
cluding school lands, swamp lands, and forest lands, held under
the provisions of the State Constitution, end that no rights or
interests therein cen be acquired by prescription or adverse
posseéssion, and that the acoulsition of such lands or of flowage
rights or other interests therein is controlled by the provisions
of the Constitution end statutes of the State,

We further call attention to the fact that & considerable
portion of the lands has been set aside as state forest under the
provisgione of the State Constitution, and withdrawn from sale.
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The Attorney General deems it his duty to insiet that
no state lands be overflowed for any purpose, either by the
existing dams cr by any dams which may heréafter be constructed;
unless lawful authority therefor be obtained.

He further deems it his duty to insist that the natural
level and flow of the waters in question be not interfered with
by the existing dams or by any dams which may hereafter be con-
structed in any manner that will injuriously affect the public
intercets or property rights unless lawful authority therefor be
obtained. ,

I think that coveres the position of the Btate so far as
we are able to indicate it at thisg time, If there are any
questions we sﬁould be glad to angwer them. ,

I may dey that Mr. Willard, who is Director of the .
Divigion of Drainage and Weters of the Department of Conservation
cf the State of Minnesots, is here represénting Mr. Cox, the
head of -that department, as I have previously stated, and he
would like to meke a ptatement as to the attitude of that depart-
ment. The Attorney General, of cours#, is not only the legal
representative of this State but is also counsel for that
department, and he will act for it in case it requireg any

legal counsel or services; but, insofar aa the policy of the
department is cotiderned, the Attornéy Generel has nothing to do
with that and I shall leave it to Mr. Willard to meke such
statements as he hhs been authorized to meke on that subject.

May I say also that the répresentatives of the State appreciate
very much the consideration whicl has been given us Here by the
Commission,

(Thereupon, at 1:10 o'clock p.m. & Tedegs was taken
until 2:15 otclock p.m.)

AFTER  RECESS

The Commission reconvened»at the expiration of the
recess, at 3:15 o'clock, p.m., Mr. Magrath presiding.

Mr. Magrath: -Gentlemen, Mr. Winston wishes to say a
few wordqfwhich he omitted to say this morning,

- Mr. Winegton: I simply want to state to ‘the Commigeion
the program which -the Quetico-8Superior Council and those organ-~
1zatione whieh are-associated with it propose as an alternative
to the power program. . '

In the first place, the Quetico-~8uperior Council sees the
Superior National Forest Park in the State .of Minnesota asg the
only remaining land. for the purposes suggested. -Even in the
Middlewest, which is in a comperative gtate of nature, it has
been logged to a certain extent it is true, but etill it is a
beautiful country. -As I say, it is the last piece we have in
Minnesota, if not in the whole country, and converting it into
power purposes would to our minds mean the spoilation of the
country. We propose, with the consent of Canada, & treaty be
instituted which will set aside the Superior Forest and as much
of the Quetico Park as the Dominion of Canada may see fit to
grant as an international forest, similar regulations being in
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effect governing both areiag, the primary purpose of this inter-
ﬁationa% forest to be the protection of timber, providing that
the cutting be done in such manner as to impair the beauty =as
little as possible. In so far as power development would inter-
fere with that, we are opposed to it. The Americtan Legion &nd
the Canadian Legion in endorsing that program have suggested, if
it is possible, to create this international forest to be dedi-
cated to the memory of the two armies that served together in the
war.

ir, Megrath: Now, Mr. Willard, are you ready to go aheadi

103. Mr. Willard: Mr. Chairman and membere of the Commis-
sion, after what Mr. Wilson said about the Conservation Commis-
gsion of Minnesota I do not see that there is any need for me to
go into the subject matter,

Prior to the session of the legislature of 1931 there
was no department of state within the state government which had
been given jurisdiction over the use, regulation and conserva-
tion of public waters., There is no department now specifically
delegated to do that, but the legislature of 1931 created a
Department of Conservation which hae taken over the Department of
Forestry, Department of Drainage and Waters, and the Department
of Game and Fish., They are formulating & program to be present-
ed to the next legislature, and it is hoped that within that
program will be encompassed the right to establish a state policy
with reference to the use of public waters. _

Mr. Cox, the Commissioner of Conservation, wanted me to
stete to you that he himself and the members of the Commission
of Conservation are keenly interested in the disposition of the
problen that you have here today. They are not only concerned
with the utilization for industry of powers where they appear to
be of an outstanding practical value, but they are much more
103. interested in representing the general public in the use of these
waters.
to :
I think he would also want me/express to you his heart-
felt appreciation of the attention which the Commission has given
to this problem. With that I have nothing further to say.

Mr. Magrath: Thank you, Mr. Willard. Is there anyone
else that wishes to be heard?

Mr. Johnston: All I wish to say, Mr, Chairman, is that
there are qguite a large number of interests on the Canadian side
nf the border that are affected by these questions before the
Commigeion, and we have been taking preliminary steps to co-
ordinate our ideas and prepare for & final hearing.

These interests are diverse and may be grouped under three
heads. For the Dominion, the Dominion will be more or less
responsible for representations having to do with international
waterway matters or international waterway responsibilities, The
Department of Indian Reservee is also interested inaemuch as there
are several Indien reserves located on the lakes in guestion.

The Canadian National Railway will also be mffected by the gues-
tions and will make representations. The Dominion fishing interests
will meke representations, and, of course, the navigation lnterests.
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These all come within the compass of the Dominion jurisdictioh.

104, In Ontario the Province will be intercsted from the
point of vicw of the power interests located in the Province,
and thesce will bc rather involved inasmuch as therc are powers
abovc the Lake of the Woods and below the Lake of the Woods.

Then, therc arc the timber intercests for which the
Province of Ontario is rcsponsible. These will involve thc
lumbcring intcrests and the departmental policy with respcct to
cloaring and forostry and such othor matters as come within the
compass of the Province. There arc the Ontario fishing
intcrosts which will involve the parks, and so forth. All of
thesc fall Wlthln the compass of the Ontarlo Jurisdictlon.

Then there will be the group which might bo termed the
Manitoba intorests. These have to do largely with power amd.
consist of the undevéloped power sites on the Winnipeg and
the developed power sites.,

Those Canadian interests are giving their consideration
to the problcm now and to thoe report of the cengincers and will
be proparcd in duc coursc to present their views to the Cormission
upon the occasion of the next hearing or whatover the Commission
may decide is the proper procedure,

‘But the interosts are diverse and the problom is com-

plicatcd. e do not wish to be hurried too rapidly into a final
105, considcration. Important points have been raeised this morning

as to basic data. Wec have been going ahead on the basis of

the final report. I think some ruling should be given by the

Commission as to what data wc.should follow in order that all

final roprescentations that come before the Commission will be

fron the samc fundamental material.

With rcgard to the Canadian intercsts I might say that
we would not .carc to be hurried into a final decision for some
months., It Is a complicated problem and can only bc analyzcd
slowly and carcfully. At the present hoearing we have no
representations to make; we arc simply forming our ideas and
getting rcady to present our final briefs,

‘Mr. Magrath: But you arc actively engagoed in getting
rcady, arc you?

Mr. Johnston: Absolutely. Y“We have no difficultics
before us. We arce simply proceedlng with the basic data that we
have been furnished with and analy21ng it with respect to all
of the interests concerned.

. Mr. Stanley: As I understand you, you will have to
detcermine which is the authoritative data®? '

Mr. Johnston: We have sinply gonc ahcad on the basis
of the last reports.

Sir William Hearst: I understand that you are assuming
106, that the 1932 data are correct?

Mr. Johnston: Ycs; but I think therc should be a ruling
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given so we can all approach this from the same basic data.

Mr, Magrath: Is there anyone else that wishes to be
heard?

Major Bullard: Professor Wisler has called my attention
to the discussion of the correctnebs or incorrectness of the basic
data. I do not think there is any guéstion ag to the ageuracy
of the basic data. The point brought up is nét as to babkic data;
it is 1s to computations based on those data. The basit observed
physical data are published in the reports. In addition to the
reports there are certain other computations. They were included,
in part, in the original reports with the statement that it was
thought that those computations would not have to be revised:

That understanding had to be itself revised. The basic data
were not modified but the conclusion therefrom which anybody {g
welcome to make wae modified.

Mr. Stanley: Major Bullard, as I understand it, the
engineere of both countriee are practically agreed on the
egsentials of these basic data for 1933%

Major Bullard: I think so.

¥r. Scovil: I might state in that respect, sir, that
results of storage and regulation show abcut the same effect but
not the results of natural levels; they do not.

Sir William Hearst: I did not catch that last state.-
ment,

Mr. Scovil:  Not the results of producing natural levels
on the various controlled lakes, they do not show the same; but
in so far as storage and regulated flow are concerned they do.
Furthermore, as I have pointed out to the Commission previously
ana as Mr. Meyer pointed out today, the possible regulated flows
are based cn extreme low water conditions. We have not as yet
come to an extreme low water condition which may modify &ll
results.

As to individual benefits, inevitably they will be the
same, but we do not know what we can get out of that storage and
that watershed at the present time under extreme low water con-
ditions, and we are still in that period.

In the period since, let us say, 1913, when more cr less
accurate records were being kept we have had two or three low
periods of runoff which govern what may be secured in the way of
regulated flow., We are now in a very prolonged period of extreme
low runoff, and we do not know what the result of this may be.

It may modify everything. 8o that is the situation as I see it.

I might still further make this statement, that while we
have had certain disagreements over data or the computations, in
the end, so far as storage and benefites from storage are concerned,
they have given almost identical results, but I do not nor can
< agree with the deductions as tc natural levels.

Bir Williem Hearst! The deductions that are embodied
in the report of 18327

Mr. Scovil: Yes, sir,
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. Mr. Bartlett: Are those deductions in the report of 1933
made from physical facts where you can measure, and so forth?
Are they made from facts which are agreed upon?

, Mr. Scovil: Let me put it in this way, sir: There are
certain physical facts; Mr. lMeyer now has certain physical
facts which we did not have available.

Mr. Bartlett: Give me an illustration of what that
means; what kind of physical facts?

Mr. 8covil: Particularly in flood stage.

Mr. Bartlett: What kind of physicai facts, I mean?
Mr. Scovil: Actual records of water flows.

¥r. Bartlett: Before the dam was built, do you mean?

Mr. Scovil; Before and afterward, both. This Whole
question of Rainy lake and Rainy Lake récords has been Bomewhat
109. a question of controversy at timee: In my own opinion I believe
the records are entirely within a reasonable limit of adcuracy.
When I sey & reagonable limit of accurecy I mean that they aré
records on which any company —— I am not talking now about a
government in this connection, but e company intending or pro-
posing power development and & scheme of development throughout
contingent upon that would, at the proper analysis, rely upon it.

I am not altogether without expefience in thiss Bince
I left college I have specialized in stuch work} and s6 far ag
Cenada is concerned, or the United Stated, I have been dngaged
since 1935 by three of the largest power companies repofting
entirely on similar projectse; for the United States the Intey—
national Paper Oompany, reporting both in Canada and Newfoundland,
and so far as Canada is concerned both the Gatineau Power Company
and the Beauharnois, Light, Heat and Power Company and the ,
Montreal Light Heat and Power Company. I feel and know that I
have some knowledge of the subject.

In the last analysis I never felt, as I have told the

Commiegsion, that there was any reason to modify our preliminary
reports of 1929 and 1930. I still feel that while there may be
differences in some of the individual computations that may

110. bring in slight differences, yet they are not of such percentage
that they affect the final results at a2ll. In so far as regulat-
ed flow is concerned, coming back to natural levels, I do believe
there is an effect, '

gir William Hearst: Well, are the natural levels an
important element in the report?

: Mr. Scovil: They are, eir, In dealing with the boundary
waters, down to Ralny Lake and dealing with the Lake of the Woods
one must start with the natural levels or deduce natural levels.
What outflow is there in the state of nature? Then after that by
providing so many feet of storage on different lakes what the out-
flow may be under regulated conditions, and then it is the in-
crease of regulated outflow over natural that shows the benefit,

Mr. Bartlett: There is & distinction between natural
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flow as observed and recorded by marks perhaps on S8hore., That
would be what you would call definite ascertainment of natural
flow before e dem was built, would it not? That is, if you find
where the marks were on trees or rocks. Is there in this case
gome record, or records, however incomplete, existing prior to
the building of the dam?

Nr. Scovil: There are recorde in this respect of the

relation between lake stage and outflow under natural conditions/

8o that

using them one may derive what the natural level would

have been in subsequent years. ~

111,

Mf. Bartlett: There is probably o difference between

Major Bullard and Mr. Meyer as t6 the record of physical markings

prior to the building of the dam, is there?

Mr. Scovill It is not so much a guestion of physical

markings, eir, ak a record of water .levels taken at certain

periods;

markings of the height of the water in its hatufa

teke at Rainy Leke above and below the falls.

Mr. Bartlett: There are gome records of ghysic&l o
gtate prior

to the building of the dams, are there?

Mr, Scovil: Yes,

Mr, Bartlett; Do I understand that there is any dispute

as to the accuracy of those records?

Mr. Scovil: No.
Mr., Bartlett: There is no way to dispute them, is theie?

Mr. Scocil: No. The trouble, if any, comes about

through the relationship between lake stage and outflow in the
highzr stages. :

Mr., Bartlett: Now, let me see if I understand it. Taking

these markings prior to the building of the dam, are there some
records of elevatione prior to the building of the dam?

113,

Mr. Scovil: Yes.

Mr. Bartlett: Taking those into consideration, does the

difference between these two sets of engineers arise because of the
conclusione to which they come based on those known facts?

Mr. Scovil: These records cover only a certain range in

lake elevation and outflow. They do not go to extreme flood stage.

curves,

Mr, Bartlett: And that has to be computed?
Mr. Scovil: That has been questioned.

Mr. Bartlett: That is what you mean when you talk about
is it not?

Mr., Scovil: Yes, sir.

Mr, Bartlett: That ie a projection of known facts in

relation to & theoretical conclusion based on those facts?
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Mf. Scovil: Yes, sir!

lr. Bartlett: So really the difference between them is
a computation or a conclusion difference, is it?

Mr., Scovil: Yes, sir.

Yr. Bartlett: If they got together could they within
an hour or a day or as long as they want exchange
ideas and level those differences, do you think?

Mr., S8covil: I believe it could be done. That is my
opinion.

Mr. Bartlett: You think they could convince each
other like two school teachers who had different notions at
first; that they would not have to change any records or
measurements or angles?

Mr. Scovil: Conclusions derived from deductions beyond
the limit of observed flows and elevations.

« Mr. Bartlett: Major Bullard, is that about the way you
understand it?

Major Bullard: Yes, sir,
Mr. Bartlett: Do you get that same notion, MNr. lMeyer?
ir. Meyer: Correct, sir.

Mr. Bartlett:; Of course, we are all willing that/you
should do that and we want you to have time enough to do it. 1Is
not that right, Sir William?

8ir William Hearst: Quite right.

Mr., Meyer: May I say that this morning I did not mean
tc indicate that our minds were closed, that we were asking that
the other side come over to ours, But I say if it is intimated
that we have been presented with everything that the other people
have to present to us, then I say we are unalterably opposed to
these conclusions. We are ready to present our facts, and if
they will present their computations and their facts that we have
asked for, we are in an open mind to consider the matter.

Mr. Bartlett: Would it not be a good idea that as you
are all here together you stick around for a day or two to see
what you can do?

Mr. Meyer: I would be very glad to do anything I can.

Major Lymen: I have juet recently come into this case.
I have with me today Professor Wisler who has been on similar
cases at different times, and I should like to introduce him. I
should like to have him have the opportunity of asking Mr. Scovil
a few questions which might help us in clarifying this difference.

Professor Wisler: If I may presume, there are just two
guestions that I should like to ask Mr. Scovil. In the first
place I should like to ask Mr. Scovil whet he considers to be
the ordinary high water level of Rainy Lake. Second, I should
like to ask whether he agrees with the method and with the results



116.

117,

1i8.

50.

that were used in obtaining the natural high water levels as
they were deduced in the preliminary report.

Mr. Scovil: I cannot give you the ordinary high water
level of Rainy Lake at the present time, I have nb figured with
me. But as I remember the preliminary reéport, the June elevation
was used, I think.

Mr. Strome; The average of June, July, August, September,

Mr. Scovil: 1In that respect and deducing the average
high water elevation of Rainy Leke, it whs entirely in accord
with the Laké of the Woods report to whiech the engineers of both
Canada and the United States, not only the commission engineers

but all others interested, agreed in formal conference in Winni-
pe%, and came before the écmmission and they accepted nct cnly the
methods formeally but the conclusions arrived at.

Professor Wisler: What was that?

Mr. 8covil: I have not the figures at my finger tips at
the present time.

Mr. Meyer: So far as my statement or argument thils
morning was doncerned, it was not the average level on Namakan
Liake or Lake of the Woods as previously published. I respectfully
¢orisider the question of the high water mark on a different lake
might be a subject of coneideration to which I do not entirely
subscribe., 1 did not know the report had a statement of the
ordinary high water level oh Reainy Lake: I am not at the moment
apprised of the fact. I referred to the ¢omputed natural levels.
We agreed with those. On one lake you may find in the months 6f
May, June, July and August, the high water marks. If you find
on a certain leke the month of May is a high water mark and higher
than July or August or September. I wouwld not say it necessarily
follows that you can omit the high water mark of May and add the
laet month of September and then determine the ordinary high water
mark.

Mr. Bartlett: I think something might be gained if you
gentlemen could get together between now and all day tomorrow and
come in Thursday morning and tell us you have made some headway
in adjusting your differences. Do you think so?

Mr. Meyer: I really believe so, I think through some
inadvertence the observations we made during 19168 and which are
matters of record in the offices of both commissioners, amounting
to several feet higher, did not come to the attention of the
commission's engineers, and I believe I am right in saying Mr.
Scovil did not know they existed until I referred to them this
morning. Is that correct?

Mr. Scovil: Correct.

Mr, Meyer: From the material we used while these matters
were in discussion, Mr. White, Mr. Starr, Mr. Shepherd and my
assistant satisfied themselves our curves were correct. Natural-
ly we do not publish information to show what we had believed then
was correct. Those curves were not published. The data are in
the files and it is unfortunate these gentlemen did not happen to
come across them. I knew they were the best I could prepare and
they were made for the specific purpose of checking those compu-
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tations of natural levels. I believe, when these gentlemen get
those figures and we get together with them across the table, we
can reach a conclusion., I would like to see their calculations.
I would like to refer again to my letter where I said I would
like to have those calculations leading up to their conclusiones
as to this curve. The answer came back that those were not among
the records the commission had authoriked the office to release,
and I stand on that position.

Mr. Bartlett: I suggeest, unless somebody has something’
more to say before the commission, that inasmuch ae Mr. Scovil is
going away tomorrow, perhaps they could get some advantage by
having the rest of the afternoon with him in the office where they
can dig out some records. I think it would be good judgment to
let them go to work on it.

Mr, Burpee! There are several large boxes of records of
the Lake of the Woods downstairs.

Mr. Wilson: Before the subject is dropped, may I ask
a guestion concerning the statement that Mr., Scovil made and that
is the fact that we have been going through a long series of
ususual water levels might change the complexion of the entire
proposition, or words to that effect., ? ghould like to inquire
whether Mr. Scovil meant to intimate by that that the ultimate
disposition of this reference is'to be dblayed until the effect
which he has in mirnd tan be determined; dnd in that connection
I want to state most emphatically that the State of Minnesota
renews its inesistence that the proceedings be pushed to & con-
clusion as rapidly as possible upon the data which have already
been gathered, assuming that these differences that have been
referred to can be reconciled., But I should like to ask Mr.
Scovil whether he intended to intimate that any further delay would
be necessary on account of the statement which he made.

Mr. Scovil: There is no reason for any delay. The
benefits that may be derived from storage as shown from the past
low periods or the present low period, out of which we are not
yet and as regards which we do not know how long it may last, will
give a sufficient answer that if in any particular lake where a
storage is proposed, the costs, even with possible present
epparent benefits, are so close to the mark that it does not
apoear economic, it would hardly appear that they would be pro-
ceeded with, But in other cases where the economic factor is
teken into account on past low periods where they may be close an
the presgent is st1ll worse, then they are out of the question
entirely. There is no reason for delay. Ae to apportionment of
benefits, that 1ls entirely relative, a direct ratio from one
power site to another,

Mr. Wilson: Thank you. May I ask further whether there
could be any indication today of just what the future proceedings
from now on will be and what time may be allowed for the engineers
getting together as has been suggested and for the submission by
the power interests of their plans if any modified plans are to be
submitted, In that connection the state would like to have as
much of a definite indication as can be arrived at. We are par-
ticularly interested in having these differences reconciled, the
basic data established and the plans upon which the proceedings
are to go forward submitted before the next legislature meets,
which will be the fore part of next Jenuary, so that in submitting
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to the legislature the water controel policy of the Conservation
Commiseion to which Mr. Willard referred, they will be able to
take those things into consideration, Otherwise another meet-
ing of our legislature, which occurs only once in two years, may
come and go without any definite declaration of the policy of
the State of HMinnesota on the broad general question of the use
of these waters.

Mr. Bartlett: Would it not be possible for the legis-
lature to empower somebody to shape the policy as events develop?

Ur. Wileonl Yes, the legislature might, subject tc
constitutional provisions, émporer the Conservation Commission to
do that, but I am sure, through your own legislative experience,
Governor, you reelize legislatures like to have a lot of infor-
mation about details and particulars, because they vest such A
extensive powers ih any subordinate bodies, so that it ig& highly
deesirable that the matter be put in as definite shape as

poesible before the meeting of our legislature next January.

We do not mean that there should be a final hearing before that
date, but that these preliminary steps which are necessary in
order to clarify the issue shoulfd be pushed to completion some
time this fall befére our legislature meets in order to put ub in
a position to submit the matter properly to the legislature,

‘Mr. Bartlett: I wonder what sbft of programme this
#ould be ~— we afe iretty nearly through with what we can do
now -~ for those interested in this ehgineering prg¥lem on both
sides of the the‘ry to get together as,%bon as thesf €en and work
as fast as they dad bnd develop this mbtter, and #&% the two
chairmen to keep track of them and for them to keep us informed,
so that just as soon as they get anywhere we will try tb agree
upon a date for a hearing. If we set it now arbitrarily, %t might
not be sc wise. I would be inclined to meke that suggestion,
Mr., Chairman. ,

Mr. Magrath: That falls within the wishes of the

Commission. We have been anxious to get this matter brought

to a head, and the commission will act and act promptly just as
soon as we get these engineering problems cleared up so as to
have the data such as will be acceptable to all interests. If

wve get the engineers at work to teke that up, you may rest assur-
ed that the commission will lose no time in fixing a date for a
public hearing.

¢

Mr. Johnston: I should like to add a statement to what
I said to the commission before. I stated that the Canadian
interests had made coneiderable progress in looking into this
matter., . I do not want the commission to feel we have gotten
very far as yet. What we have done is to have & conference to -
discuss the questions before the commission and the final report
of the commission as it bears upon those questions. That is
what I intended to state when I said we had gone ahead on the
basis of the final report. We have reviewed the questions and
the final report with a view to seeing how far the final report
has answered the questions, We have done practically nothing
with respect to computations which would enable ues to reach our
conclusions., Such computations have been based, I am advised by
Mr. Strome, on the 1939 and 1930 records. I want to meke that
quite clear, that when we said we were going ahead on the final
report, we/%ere going on the basis of ascertaining how far the

and
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Mr. Wilson: Then we should be advised of that. If no
modified plans are submluted and if no one proposes to go ahead
with the plans set forth in the engineers *epo*u, a great deal
of gound has been completely eliminated, unless the commission
should determine to go ahead on an abstract proposition.

Mr. McCumber: These questions are submitted to us,
whether there is anyone prepared to carry ocut the project or not.

¥r. Wilson: We do nct attempt to suggest what the
commission should do. :

Mr. McCumber: 7You are just suggesting it could not do
anything but go ahead on an abstract proposition.

Mr. Wilson: This thought suggested itself to us that
this whole situvation like most other economic problems is subject
to the o0ld basic law oI supply and demand. - If there is no demand

.for the development of this power, no cne ready, willing and able

to develop it at any time that can reasonab]y be anticipated,
then it can hardly be said that it is economically desirable or
practical to go ahead with it.

Mr Mcbumber’ That might be an excuse for delay, but
hard]y an excuse for feilure to comply with what is submitted to
us. There are certain findings that we have to make,

Mr. Wilson: That 1e true, However, the questions of the
reference reguire the commisgsion to determine those issues for
iteelf. In other words, those guestions do nct beg themselves,
and -1f the commission should decide right at the outset that there

1e no reasonable prospect within any time that can now be antici-

pated, there will be any demand whatever for the development of

"thie power, certainly that would be an important factor in the

economic feasibility and desirability of it, and mlght justify

“the commission in saying that no further expenditure of the time

of the commission, or the money of the two governments or of the
time or money of all these parties concerned, would be justified

in going ahead with an inguiry which would ]ead to no practical

results. That is, I am assuming it could he definitely determined
in advance there would be no practical results. Of course, if
there is a reasonable possibility that the plan proposed in the
engineers! raport is to be carried out, then the commission might

feel in duty bound to go ehead with it.

81r Willlam Hearst: How can we give judgment and attempt
to answer guestlons untll we have all the materiel and argument
before us that any person desireg to present to us?

Mr. Wilson: I would say that the commigsion could not;
but 1f the commission says to all interesgted parties: What are
your plans? Please submit them for our consideration, if you
desire to have them considered at all; and it then appears that
there 1s no interested party desiring to go ahead with such an
ambitious plan of regulation as i1s suggested by the engineers!
report, it seeme to us it would be a very serious quesetion whether
any further expenditure of the public time or money or the time
or money cof the privete individuals concerned would be warranted.
It would be & futile inquiry into an abstract proposition. 8o, .
in view of the fact that Mr. Meyer haes already before this com-
mission and also more or less publicly and privately in Minne-
apolis at the home office of his clients stated that it does not
seem advisable to go ahead with efforts to develop the project to
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thz extent recommended by the engineers, and in view of the
fact that there does not seem to be any other pover interest
ready, able and willing to undertake such development, the
state thinke that whatever modified plans they have in mind
should be submitted, and then the commissgion will be in a
position to indicate whether further proceedings will be based
upon those plans or upon the proposition suggested by the
engineers.
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Mr. McCumber: But the two governments that submitted
the matter to the commission did not recognize Mrs Backus or
anybody else. They simply wanted to know what could be done
in the matter that is submitted to us on behalf of the two
governments and irrespective of whether this power company or
any other company was ready to go into the project. It seems
to me that having been submitted to us, the only way we could
relieve ourselves of our duty would be to have the govermments
release us from the duty which they have imposed upon us.

Mr. Wilson: I see that point and further we would have
no criticism whatever to make of that attitude on the part of
the commission. All that we are asking is that we be advised
at as early a date as posgible whether we are to go ahead and
complete our investigations and determine to what extent our
interests are to be affected by the plan proposed by the
engineers, or whether we are to go ahead on some other plans,
because the investigations that we would be required to make
would necessarily be much different.

Mr., McCumber: We ¢ertainly want to help you out as much
as possible and get this matter settled between the several .
engineers if it is possible for them to agrde and agree early
enough so that you can act on it at your legislative meeting.

Mr. Wilson: As I have already indicated; our holdings
on Namakan Lake and Rainy Lake include over four hundred
different subdlvisions scattered round the shores of those lakes,
and there are also a number of subdivisions scattered along
Lake Ldocroix and upper lakes. It is & tremendously laborious
task to appralse the effect of these proposals on the land and
the timber growing along the shore, €0 that if we have to go
ahead with it to the extent requlred by the enginéers* ptoposal,
we should like to know that as soon as possible; but if some
modified proposal 1is to be proceeded on, we should like to kifow
that as soon as possible.

Sir William Hearst: We would like to help Mr. Wilson but
personally I do not see how it is possible to furnish him in
advance with the information he requests. I understand a public
meeting is to be held, That was announced when we had the last
public meeting. How can we prevent any person coming before us
at that meeting with a different proposition from what the
engineers have submitted to us and ask us to say whether this is
not a proposition we should approve and recommend? How can we
B8ay there will not be any other person who will come forward,
even 1f Mr. Meyer, for instancs, drOps out?

Mr. McCumber: But if they should agree on what would be
a proposition, it would be a simple and easy matter to approve
that agreement as to the engineers.

Sir William Hearst: That is these engineers, but I do not
know how we could say there would not be any other elternative
proposition suggested.

Mr. Wilson: Might I suggest this, that at least the
interested parties could be requested to ‘submit within a certain
time any modified plans which they contemplate, so that we may
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adjust ourselves to that as well as to the plan set forth in the
engineers' report? This proceeding has been going on so long
and the power interests who are concerned in it are so well
known that it is hardly likely any of them will come forward at
the last moment with some newly developed plan after they have
been given an opportunity for consideration. Since Mr. Meyer
has already indicated that they have a modified plan in mind
and that that could be formulated within the next few weeks,
could not all the interested parties be notified of that fact,
and also requested, if they have any other plans in mind, that
they should submit the details of them so that the different
parties can determine the effect of such modifications as well
as the plan proposed in the engineers'! report, because those
effects, 1t is obvious, will be quite different.

Major Bullard: I want to emphasize the great practical
utility of the proposal made by Mr., Wilson. Of course it is
possible that others may come forward with plans and it may even
be probable; but if we can discuss plans which are definitely
proposed for execution, if the commission can have such plans
presented, it will be much further along on its wdy. The plan
that is developed in this report is not proposed as a plan for
absolute development by some individual or organizationi it is
not guaranteed to be the best plan: In order to Hdve any such
guarantee, we would have to study not half a dozen or a dozen
plans, but may be a hundred plans and select from them, dfter
very. exhaustive study, probably the best one. Then we could
go be sure; because one individual organization would want to

évelop in one way stiited to its own needs and another in another
way. I believe it wbuld be of the greatest benefit, in advancing
the determination of this questitn; to 48k those brganizations
known to have definite interests to propose by a cdertain time
a definite plan as to how they desire this development mades To
be specifie, I would suggest that the commission call upon the
Backus~Brooks Company and its subsidiaries to furnish any
definite plan; that it call upon the State of Minnesota asking

if that state has any definite plan for the development. I

think Mr. Wilson will cover that thoroughly. I would suggest
that if the provinces of Manitoba and Ontario or the power
interests in those provinces have any definite plans, that they
be called upon to present them before a certain time. I would
further say in regard to the difference of opinion with Mr.
Meyer as to the calculations, it will certainly be of utility

to discuss with Mr. Meyer while we are here, &he matters which
he has proposed today and of which I to-day have heard for the
first time. But I do not believe that in the time that is at

our disposal here we can come to a conclusion and say: We accept
or we reject what you propose. It will require calculations
over some time, and it may take as much as a month in order to
review carefully and thoroughly the conclusions at which we
have arrived. At the end of that time we may not come to an
agreement. Beyond that, there are certain to be other points
upon which we shall not be in agreement and which will form
stumbling blocks all the way along the line. I would therefore
suggest that the commission give the engineers one month in whiech
to hear anyone who vroposes to criticize or question any of the
calculations, not basic but close to basic data, and that beyond
that time the organizations present, within say six months from
the present time, their definite plans based upon the data they
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believe to be correct. Otherwise I am afraid that any disagree-
ment will simply result in further delay, more amnd more as we gO
along. I would therefore suggest again, to summarize those two

points; one month to confer on the data in disagreement; six
months or any time fixed by the commission of course, in which
all those who propose plans submit something definite to go omn.

Mr. McCumber: Mr. Meyer says he can have his plan ready
from the data he has worked on, in about four weeks and have it
submitted, = If you are working with him during those four weeks,
could you not all agree upon a plan in practically the same
period?

Major Bullard:; We may have differences of opinion. If
we are to agree, we should be able to agree within that time,
but if we are to disagree, no time limit would help.

| Mr. Meyer: When I nlade that statement then, I said it
must go to the reéeiver, 1 tannot speek for the receiver. I
have to g6 to Bostoh an8l New York: I hope to get back to my
office in ten days, so it doés not leave d gredt deal of time
But I could within four weeks present my plan to the receiver,
but it will take them some time to say what the policy will be
for the future.

Mr. Bartlett: I should like to ask a question of the
attorney for the receiver, Mr. Rogers. Soonser or later you
expect to formulate some idea of what you should contend for?

Mr. Rogers: We will have to do that.

Mr. Bartlett: When you do, are you willing to communicate
your ideas to Mr. Wilson in order that he may defend against it,
if necessary? o

Mr. Rogers: I do not know of any reason why we should not
be willing to do that, In fact, I assume any recommendations or
conclusions made by the receiver will have to be incorporated in
their report to the court and become a public document.

Mr. Bartlett: Would not that answer your suggestion, Mr,
Wilson? -

Mr. Wilson: Yes, so far as the Minnesota and Ontario Paper
Company is concerned. If other interests intend to submit
modified proposals, we should like also to be advised of them
within three months at the outside, if it is at all possible., Our
legislative session is limited by the constitution to ninety
legislgtive days after the first Tuesday in January.

Mr. Bartlett: If there are any other interests proposing
plans, they will be making them known to the commission, and we -
will let the interested parties know what they are.

Mr. Wilson: I heartily agree with Major Bullard's proposal.
Mr. Bartlett: When Attorney Rogers gets the things

formulated which the company desire to contend for -- and he will
do it within a reasonable time -~ if he will let you know what
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that is, then you will know how to defend against it. You may

agree to it. It may not affect your interests. If anybody else
brings in any plans before the commission, I am sure the chairmen
or secretaries will let you know., We are anxious to make progress,

Mr. Wilson: Would the commission be willing to instruct
: its secretaries to communicate with the parties suggested by
137, Major Bullard and invite them to send their plans promptly?

_ Mr. Bartlett: They are all here. Mri Rogers is here
representing the Backud interests. He has agreed to do that,
If anythihg else domes up, we will let you know, of course.

‘ :

Mr: Scovil:s There is one phase of it: Mr. Meyer is here
representing one private interest. The Wihnipeg river block
interest must be represented., They have retained consultihg
advice jointly, I believe, between the province, the city and the
Winnipeg Electrics The province of Ontario alsc has engineering
advice, so that their engineers must be consulted in the final
analysis inasmuch as any conferences held with Mr. Meyer will
have to be notified to them,

Mr. Bartlett: They are not here to-day.
Mr., Scovil: They were not notified,
Sir Williem Hearst: They were not notified, as I explained,

Mﬁ. Bartlett: They can be notified right away and
collaborate with the others.,

Mr., Scovil: Mr. W. S. Lee of Montreal is acting for the
combined Manitoba interests and I suppose Dr. Hogg and Mr., L.V.
Rorke will represent Ontario.

138, Mr. Magrath: The difficulty that I see is harmonizing the
views and suggestions of Mr. Meyer and this report. That is
the first step, is it net?

Mr., Rogers: It is as I see it.
Mr. Magrath: How long is it going to take to do that?

Ma jor Bullard: I do not think I can say yes or no positively
before a month, because it will require careful calculation to
review it,

Mr. Stanley: Do you feel within a month your engineers
can definitely advise us either that you have agreed or that
you have disagreed; that agreement is not possible?

Ma jor Bullard: I think we can do it on that point., If
any other points come up, there might be further stumbling
blocks.,

Mr. Stanley: On all points essential to the problem, the
erection of these proposed structures.
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Ma jor Bullard: That is very difficult and possibly imposs=-
ible, because that would mean agreement all along the line, not
merely basic data or preliminary computations but all the con-
clusions, and where there are controversies it is hardly possible
to hope for that agreement all along the line. Furthermore,
there are certain interests represented by Mr. Meyer whose

139, developments would be based upon their own individual needs and
would not probably coincide with those of the people in general.

Mr. Stanley: In any event it strikes me we ought to know
within a month the points upon which you agree and the points
upon which you disagree. In addition to that we will have the
data of the disagreeing engineers and the basis upon which they
reach their agreements and disagreements, upon which the commiss-
ion can act.

Ma jor Bullard: I think agein we cannot promise to be
able to state in a month all of the points upon which we disagree
and the data representing that disagreement or those disagree-
ments. There are likely to be disagreements all along the line,
and as soon as we settle one we will come upon another one. I
think Mr. Meyer, who has examined this report, in how much detail
I am not positive, can probably give you better than I can --
I know as a matter of fact he can better than I can -- the points
on which he disagrees., So far, I have heard basically of only
one point., There will no doubt be others. I think he will agree
with me on that point,. \

Mr. Meyer: No doubt there will be some other matters
140, coming up though I really anticipate not a great deal of

disagreement respecting most of those matters., When it comes %o
the working out of a project, we might suggest a different type
of project, but I have been over a considerable portion of the
report even though I have had only two weeks on it, and I would
say I 4o not believe we are going to strike a great many points
of disagreement., If, however, my time is going to be taken up
in connection with these conferences to get together on the
points of difference, I cannot be using that same time for the
working out of the project. I have stopped all work on the
project and have gone ahead to try to reconcile our differences.
If we are to have a month to do that, I cannot at the same time
carry on my work on the project. Those differences muet first
be disposed of before I start working out a project. Then I can
work out a project that will be submitted to the receivers for
them to consider and pass on.

Sir William Hearst: Mr. Meyer, what is your practical
suggestion in order that we may make progress? Let us have
your views,

Mr. Meyer: I think, as I have already stated, it would
be better for the engineers to get together and present what
141, data and computations they have, such as the computations that
I have asked for and other similar computations so that we may
check each other's work and see how we have arrived at those
conclusions.,
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Sir William Hearst. Cannot it be arranged between your
engineers to get at that at once?

Mr. Meyer: I do not see why we cannot have an immediate
preliminary conference and I will turn over any information I have.
Perhaps after I get back to the office, we can have a conference
at Duluth where all the records are on this intermediate point.

It depends on Mr. Scovil's appointments or whether we can all

be there at the same time for all the conferences., On points on
which Mr. Scovil and I are agreed, it would not be necessary for
him to be present. On others it would be. Some reasonable time
must be allowed, and I think it is the best procedure to iron
out these differences first and then we can talk projects.

Mr. Johnston: Evidence has been given of certain difference
that have developed. I think it is fundamental that agreement
should be reached upon what were the natural levels of those lakes,
Our experience in connection with the Lake of the Woods easements

142.1ed us to realize the vast importance of that determination., 4ll
the costs of securing easements on lands above or bordering upon
those lakes will be based upon the natural levels, and if there
are differences of opinion between opposing, lnterests I foresee
there will be an unending serigs of bbstrudhlons and difficulties.
ahead of us« It is of f£ir#t impbrtance that there should be
agreement upon natural levels. That will materially assist the
development of this problem.

Mr. Magrath: Gentlemen, will you engineers get togefher
for a while? '

At this point the commission took a brief recess in order
that the engineers might hold a conference,

' Thereupon at 4 p.m. the commission adjourned until
Wednesday, October 5th, 1932, at 10 a.m.

October 5th, 1932.

143 The commission resumed at 10 a.m.

Mr. Meyer: Gentlemen of the commission, last night we
spent a little time in looking up the original records. They
were those I referred to yesterday which are observations of the
actual flow required between Rainy Lake and the location of the
dam to carry certain volumes of water at certain lake stages,
which I believed would fully answer the questions of difference
between us. This morning I found the necessary records and turned
them over to Professor Wisler and at the same time asked him one
or two questions in the hope of finding out the probability of
our being able to get together. Immediately there appeared such
a difference of opinion between us that I feel it is desirable
to put into the record now one or two questions bearing upon the
same matter, and I should like to ask Professor Wisler one or two
questions so that there may be on record immediately some funda-
mental facts that have a bearing upon the reason for this differ-
ence. If Professor Wisler agrees to answer them, I again agree
to answer questions that he may ask of ne.
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Mr. Magrath: Is that agreeable to you; Professor Wisler?
Professor Wisler: Yes.

Mr. Meyer: On plate 27 of the final report you show rating
curves for Rainy River above the falls and for the outlet of the
lake that show the relationship between lake stage and outflow
in a state of nature., Will you please refer to that plate
and tell me what you have computed to be the fall between the
outlet of the lake and the point above International Falls as
shown by your curves for a discharge of 28,500 cubic feet per
second?

Professor Wisler: Remembering that these curves show the
conditions before the dam was constructed, during that period
prior to 1909 the fall according to those curves was about three
and one=quarter feet.

Mr., Stanley: Will you explain what you mean by the fall
being three and one-quarter feet? From what point to what point?

Professor Wisler: From the lake down to the crest of the
falls, a distance of about four and a half or five miles.

Mr. Meyer: I am sorry, the distance is actually about
three miles, but we will leave that for a moment. In your answer
you refer to the crest of the falls. Will you kindly locate the
crest of the falls a little more specifically, so that we may
know what point we are speaking about?

Sir William Hearst: Will you explain that point about
the construction of the dam?

Mr. Meyer: Construction of the dam was begun in 1905 by
the construction of coffer dams below the falls and small coffer
dams between islands on the Canadian side in general at the sides
of the channel for the purpose of building particularly the
Canadian power house and for the purpose of excavating the rock
ridge that still existed at the head of the Canadian channel and
for the purpose of putting sluice gates at that point in order
to facilitate the handling of water during construction when the
coffer dam would have to be built across the main channel. Cone-
struction was continued until the fall of 1907 and then
discontinued until the fall of 1908 when it was recommenced. The
coffer dam was put across the channel itself in the winter amd
spring of 1909 and the water level was raised in the lake amd
under control from that time on. I should like Professor Wisler's
answer.

Professor Wisler: The crest of the falls as I have taken
1t is as shown on plate 76 of the engineers' report of 1916 on
the Lake of the Woods, as being at section 75.

Mr. Meyer: Your level referred to on this plate 27, being
the level shown by the curve "above International Falls,"
represents the water level on section 75.

Professor Wisler: Yes.,

Mr. Meyer: Is it true that that section 75 represents the
crest of the falls right at the point where the water tumbles over?
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Professor Wisler: Yes.,

Mr. Meyer: Do you consider that that level on the crest
of the falls from a hydraulic engineer's viewpoint is one that
can properly be designated as "above International Falls"?

Professor Wisler: It is not the section at which the
gauge was located. That is true. It is, however, the section
at whi¢h you must start your oomputatlons to determine the
elevations of the watershed at various points upstream from that

section,

Mr. Meyer: In other words, the answer that I received
from the Duluth office. as to what' point this curve "above
International Falls" on plate 27 refers to, was given me.

incorrectly and contrary to your understanding of what this
represents., I will refer to the letter, Professor Wisler. On
September 9, 1932; I wrote to Major Lyman at Duluth:

#To what point 'above International Falls!
does the rating so designated refer? By this I mean

whether or not this curve refers to the stage which .
might be observed in the pool above the tongue of rock
and the Canadian head gates."

I received the following in »eply on Beptember 12;

"The point 'above the falls' expresses the
relationship at section 73 near the head of the
Canadian navigation canal,."

Up to this point I have assumed that this enswer was corrects

Professor Wisler: That answer is correct and I wish to
change my previous statement. Our computations started at
section 75 and from there we carried them up to section 73
which is only a couple of;hundred feet upstream from section 75
and at that point section 73 is the secotion to which that curve
refers, In my previous statement I was in error. I should have
said 73 instead of 75.

Mr, Meyer: Is it correct it shows the water level at a
point near the head of the Canadian navigation canal? -

Professor Wisler: Yes,

Mr. Meyer: And above the tongue of rock in a state of
nature?

Professor Wisler: It is opposite the tongue of rock.

Mr. Meyer: So that we may get to a closer understanding,
what difference would you say there was in the fall between a
point opposite the tongue of rock and a point say a few hundred
feet above the tongue of roock? ‘

Professor Wisler: There is liable t0 be considerable
difference on account of the small sectlon there at that tongue
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of rock as compared with the much larger section upstream from it.

Mr. Meyer: In other words, this curve which you have

marked "above International Falls" represents a point in the
rapids above the falls rather than above the falls?

Professor Wisler! It represents the elevation of the
water surface at the upper end of the navigation canal.

Mr. Meyer: And if I say that all our observations show
that there is substantially a pool of quiet water above the
tongue of rock and always w%s in a state of nature, would you
say that this curve marked ™above the £alls™ comes within a
few tenths of a foot as representing the water level in the pool
above the falls?

Professor Wisler: It represents the elevhtion of the
water surface at the end of the navigation canal., 'As ‘to what
the velocities are, I do not recall, nor can I give them to
you without referénce to our original computation.

Mr. Meyer: At the same time, if I may be pardoned for
referring to yesterday's conversation, I believe both Major
Lymah and at least one other man, as I recall it, representing
the engineers of the Duluth office, indicated that I had all
that was hecessary for the purpose of checking the. difference
that existed and that when I gsked for & ccpy of the cbmputations,
it was not necessary &nd I,hag all I neededi Yet it dévelops ‘
that apparently you and I Have an entirely different uhderstanding
ad to what "above the falls" means, whether it means the pool
of water above the falls or some point in the rapids above the
falls which is usually pretty much indeterminate when we come
down to meking computations in a rocky chennel that makes a right
angle turn., I want to say this to the commission that my work
is limited to a point above the falls and not in the rapids and
that all our curves refer to a point above the falls¢ I am
pointing this out because I wanted to test these two curves
against actual observations. If that in fact proves to be, as
stated by Professor Wisler, in the rapids, it is absolutely
essential that the initial computations upon which those ourves
were based be furnished me at the earliest possible moment or
there 1s not the slightest opportunity of our getting together.

Professor Wisler: I have a question I should like to ask.

Mr, Stanley: What is the approximate difference in
level between the point in the rapids at which you say Professor
Wisler based his computations and the level of this pool to
which you refer?

Mr. Meyer: I intended to follow out the initial question.

Mr., Stanley: I want the materiality of the difference
between you.

Mr. Meyer: I wanted to follow out my initial question
with this: If Professor Wisler's curve shows a fall =-

- Mr. Magrath: Have you a question to ask, Professor
Wisler?
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Professer Wisler: Yes,

Mr. Meyer: 1 was answering Senator Stanley. I intended
to follow my initial question which was answered to the effect
that there was 3% feet of fall between the lake and this point
"above International Falls" now located as being in the rapids
at the tongue of rock, and they actually observed on May 21, 1927,
there was a discharge of 28,500 cubic feet per second, which is
the same discharge used in the guestibn I asked Professor Wisler
and the observed fall is about two feet to a point beyond the
tongue of rock or a foot and a quarter difference. It is a
question of showing them that in a state of nature there must be
a foot and a quarter fall between the point at the tongue of rock
and a point just above the tongue of rock, and unless that can
be proven, these curves on plate 27 must be in error, elther one
or both., Now, Professor Wisler,

Professor Wisler: I should like to ask what the loeation
of the gauge was to which your curve "above the falls" is
referred in your report. Where does that curve refer td4?

Mr. Meyer: There is no exact statement mede in any of"
the records of the men who made the measurements. For example,
Mr. Acres of the Ontario Hydro Electric Commission made a measure-
ment in 1905 and again in 1906, I think it wasi He referred to
the level above the falls. I will wager my professional reputation
on the fact that those men took it above the falls, in the pool
above the tongue of rock and not in the rapids. Beyond that I
have no knowledge as to where that level was taken. The Minnesota
and Ontario Power Company took readings and merely refefred to
them as "above the falls.® There was a coffer dam locatéd at the
Head gates of the Canadian canal for the purpose of excavating
that tongue of rock and plitting ih those gates, and so far as I
have been able to determine from Mr. Backus, who was upon the
ground and from the engineers who were there during most of the
time observations were taken, that gauge was located on the coffer
dam on the Canadian side above the head gates of the canal. That
is as close as I can tell you as to where it was. Our curve
refers to the level above the falls and not in the rapids above
the falls,

Professor Wisler: We made a very careful study at the
initiation of these investigations as to where the gauge readings
were taken and as to where the "™above the falls" curve as given
in the 1916 report referred, and our best information was that
it referred to the elevation of the water at the side of the stream
above the navigation canal, and we therefore referred our curve
to the same identical point. The two curves as best we could
determine are tied in at the same identical point., Our "above the
falls" curve is tied in at the same identical point with the
"above the falls™ ourve as shown in the 1916 report.

Mr. Meyer: Then Professor Wisler, instead of this curve
representing the water level in the rapids opposite the tongue
of rock, it actually refers to a point sufficiently above where the
level is substantially stable and does refer to the same location
as ours does.
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Professor Wisler: Yes.

Mr. Meyer: Thank you. We have covered that amount of
ground., Now, I will go back to my original question.

Mr. Bartlett: Does that mean you agree on that point?

Mr. Meyer: As to the location.
Mr. Bartlett: As to the beginning of the curve?

Mr, Meyer: Of our whole discussion as to the difference,

Professor Wisler, bn May 1, 1927, according to the published
records there was a discharge of about 28,500 cubic feet per
second from Rainy Lake. At that time, a water level observed on
the United States eide at the pulp mill, also published in the
reports of the commission's engineers, shows that there was an
actual fall required of approximaetely two feet instead of three
and one=-quarter feet to carry that water from Rainy Lake down
the stream, past the tongue of rock, past the location of the
gauge, and possibly four or five hundred feet below to where the
power house is now located. How do you reconcile the fact that
the actual records show a fall of two feet for a given discharge
and your computations show a fall of three and one-quarter feet?

Professor Wisler: That I should say is very easily
explained by the fact that those curves from which we show a
fall of three and one-quarter feet, show the fall that would
have been required in a state of nature, whereas the two feet
fall to which Mr. Meyer refers was obtained with the dam in
place; with an obstruction in the stream and slack water existing
above the dam, a different amount of fall is required entirely
from what was required in a state of nature,

Mr. Meyer: Professor Wisler, does it make any difference
in the water level at any given point in the stream above a dam
as to whether or not all the water is being discharged through
five gates or all the water is being discharged through ten gates,
as long as the gates are distributed in such a way as not to
meke an unequal distribution of flow across the stream?

Professor Wisler: It certainly makes a difference as
regards the elevation of the water surface at any point above the
dam as to whether there are any gates open or whether there are
not,

Mr. Meyer: I beg your pardon. My question was whether
it makes any difference if you have ten gates in a dam and you
open each gate a certain amount necessary to discharge, say
30,000 cubic feet per second, or open only five of those gates a
greater amount, taking every other gute, in order to discharge
the same 30,000 cubic feet per second? Does that make any ‘
difference in the water surface above the dam?

Professor Wisler: I do not sec the point of your question
at all,

Mr. Meyer: It is just a question of fact I am trying to
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get at, a matter of hydraulics, very simple and very ecasily
answered.,

Professor Wisler: It is a very easy question to answer,
As to whether it makes any difference as to the water surface
upstream whether there i1s a dam or whether there is not, that is
the point involved, not the number of gates.

Mr. Meyer: We will get to that in a moment if you will
kindly answer my question. Does it make any difference if five
gates or ten gates are open as long as it is the same amount
of water that is being discharged?

Professor Wisler: To thg elevation of the water surface?
Mr. Meyer: Yes.
Professor Wisler: Certainly it does.

Mr. Meyer: Will you kindly explain that new principle
of hydraulios with which I am nct acquainted?

Professor Wisler: It is not a new principle. If you had
all the gates open in a dam --

A Mr. Meyer: Please limit yourself to my question., I want
to be sure the premises are understood. If there are ten gates
open or only five gates open and discharging 30,000 cubic foeet
per second in each case?

157., Professor Wisler: Certainly it makes a difference.
Mr. Meyer: Will you kindly explain how?
Professor Wisler: That is so fundamental,

Mr. Magrath: I do not think Professor Wisler understands
you.

Mr. Meyer: I do not think he does. I am not trying to
interrupt. I am Just trying to make surc we understand each
other. I want to lead from that to some other question.

Professor Wisler: If all of tie water of this 30,000
cubic feet per second is being discharged through those gates --

Mr. Meyosr: Certainly.

Professor Wisler: -- or some of it passing over the crest
of the dam?

Mr. Meyer: I made the assumption very plain. Heoo 1s a
dam. We will assume it blocks the flow completely. In one case
we open ten gates; in the other, five gates, the ten gates half
open and the five full cpen, just enough to discharge 30,000
cuble feet per second 1in each case. That will create a back stream
curve.

Professor Wisler: So that the water passes ower the crest,
certainly. :
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Mr. Meyer: Instead of having all gates, we have some
water going over the crest of the dam, but again only having
30,000 cubic feet per second. I will meke a further assumption.
I will assume, instead of a dam, we have somé rock ridges in
here that furnish a natural control where the artificial dam
is now located, and we will assume again the 30,000 cubic feet
per second flowing through. We will assume further that when
we were discharging 30,000 cubic feet per second with the dam
in place, we had a given water level 1,000 feet above the dam.
We will now take the dam away and we will put some rock ridges
in its place and let the same amount of water go through and
assume that is obviously the same water level at the same location,
Does that mean that the water level beyond that, the back water,
will show exactly the seme irrespective of what we had below
this section so long as the same amount of water passes this
section and as long as the water level at this section stnye
exactly the same? Does it make any differonce above that point?

Professor Wisler: If I have positive knowledge that the
elevation of the water surface upstreem from this dam is at
exactly the seame elevation in each case, then it makes no
difference, but you are making an assumption there.

Mr, Meyer: We are down now to the question of whether or
not we can prove that at a certain point above tHe dam in a state
of nature there was a certain water level and that under control
with the dam there for the same discharge there was the same
water level; that then from that point on it makes no difference,
the slope in the stream to bring the water to that location is.
the same whether nature coantrols or whether a dam controls.

Now, then, if we did actually observe in 1916 the water level at
various points above the original tongue of rock and all the way
up to Rainy Lake, and we found a certain slope required to carry

a certain amount of water, will the same slope be required to

carry the same amount of water and identically the same stage in

a state of nature and under control from this point up irrespective
of what is below?

Professor Wisler: Again based upon the same assumption
that the water level at this tongue of rock to which you refer

is identically the same in each case, it will make no difference.

Mr., Meyer: Then I see no reason in the world why, when
Professor Wisler submits to me his computetions and I submit to
him our readings of 1916, we should not come to exact agreement.
The physical facts will then be before us capable of actual
demonstration. ZEither one or the other wiil be right. I think,
Mr. Chairman, 1t has cleared the atmosphere a good deal to get
this into the record.

Mr. Bartlett: I should like to ask Professor Wisler a
few questions. What 1s the real point, if any, between you now?

Professor Wisler: The point of differcence is not so
fundementally the point to which Mr. Meyer refers as it is this,
and this is 8o clear and simple that it does not require an
engineer to understeand it. I think I can meke it perfectly clear

to all of you. The fundemental point, I think, upon which we
differ is «-




69,

Mr. Bartlett: You still maintain you do differ?

Professor Wisler: Therc is a difference. It is not
entirely,. as Mr. Meyer has stated, the differencc between these
two curves, but it is also as to whether this first curve from
which our computations are started is correct or whether this
curve up here is. The difference is very largely as to whether
or not our base curve which is shown as "above the falls" curve
is correet,. or whether the basie curve from which Mr. Meyer starts

161, in his 1916 report and indicates as "above the falls™ curve, is.
The dotted line is our curve, the 1932 report curve. I might
say in reference to some discussion that was had yesterday as
to our recognizing the vital importance of these curves as being
the cause of our checking the computation, it was not so much
the vital importance as the evident error that must exist in
this basic curve,

Mr, Bartlett:; When you say "basic curve," tell me
which you mean?

Professor Wisler: The 1916 "above the falls™ curve,

The reason why I term that so evident is this. Referring to
the 1916 report, plate 79, it shows cross sections taken above
the falls. Those cross sections show a narrow, deep channel
until the water reaches a stage of approximately 492. From
492 to 494 the width of the stream does not increase gradually,
but it suddenly becomes very wide, more than three times the
width it assumed at the lower stages. Referring now to the
discharge curve above the falls as shown in the 1916 repordt,
that discharge curve is curved until you get up approximately
to this stage where the width of the stream greatly increases.
The meaning of that curvature is simply this: Remember that

162. this is a curve that shows the discharge at different elevations.
For one foot elevation you get a certain increase in the discharge
As that curve is curved, the more it is curved, the more that
discharge increases for a given fixed rise in the water surface.
All discharge curves with which I have been familiar keep
increasing in their curvature as they go up, meaning that you
have a greater and greater increase in discharge for a given rise
in level of the water surface. The reason for our investigating
these curves was the fact that this curve does not show such an
increase in discharge with a given rise in stage when you get
above the elevation of around 494, but instead the increase in
discharge becomes a constant above that stage, in spite of the
fact that the width of the stream triples. You get the same
inerease in discharge for a rise of one foot at these higher levels
as you do at the lower levels,. which to me is fundementally
impossible,:

Mr, Bartlett:: That is why you think their ourves of 1916
are wrong?

Professor Wisler: Yes, and that was the reason for our

going ahead and computing these curves as we felt they must exist.
I submit to you as being the fact that our curve when drawn in

163. through the only discharge measurements that we have for verifying
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it, coincides more closely with those discharge measurements
than does the original curve as shown in the 1916 report.

Mr. Bartlett: You come from some starting point. What
starting joint do you regard as fixed and proven?

Professor Wisler: With the information that is shown
on plate 76 and with the cross sections as shown on plate 79,
we can determine what the discharge must be over those falls.

Mr. Bertlett: Were those crcss sections taken before
the dam was built?

Professor Wisler: Yes.,

Mr., Bartlett: From what data?

Professor Wisler: From field surveys,

Mr. Bartlett: Field surveys before the dam was buiit?
Professor Wisler: Yes.

Mr. Bartlett: Were those questioned?

Professor Wisler: I have never heard them questioned.

Mr. Bartlett: You use that as a basic start so to speak
and figure a different curve from what Mr. Meyer does, on the
theory there must be a greater curve due to the hydraulics of
the situation®?

Professor Wisler: 7Yes, there must be a curvature in
that curve from the very fundamental thecry of hydraulies.

Mr. Bartlett: And you get a curve to a greater height
than Mr. Meyer does because you figure on this quantitative
proposition that you have just been explaining?

Professor Wisler: We get a curvature lower; it falls
below their curve.

Mr, Bartlett: Do you not get more fall than he does?

Professor Wisler: We get more fall, but the fall is
independent entirely of this curve.

Mr. Bartlett: Does not the curve represent the fall?

Professor Wisler: No, the difference between the two
curves represents the fall.

Mr. Bartlett: One is the base line and the other ==

Professor Wisler: The one is the curve at the falls

or just above the falls at the head of the navigation canal
and the other refors up to the water surface in the lake.
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Mr. Bartlett: But you have a different curve than he has
reprosenting a different fall of the water?

Professor Wisler: Well, that shows a difference in the
fall of the water, but as I say, our greatest difference, I
should say, is not as to the amount of fall that occurs there, but
as to the starting point, our basic curve, the curve that shows
the rclationship between stage of water and discharge right at
the falls,

Mr. Bartlett: What does all this get to -~ the question
of where the naturel level of the water was in a state of nature?

Professor Wisler: Yes,.

Mr., Bartlett: And you project that from certain data
that you havc known at a certain point on the falls, do you?

Professor Wisler: Yes.

Mr. Bartlett: Do you project from the same point? 4s I
understocd it, Mr. Meyer projects from a certain point above the
sharp falls and you project from the sharp falls.

Professor Wisler: We really start at the same point,
the hcead of the navigation canal.

Mr. Bartlett: Having agreed on that, your difference in
computing the natural level of the lake is a question of hydraulic
theory?

Professor Wisler: VYes. I might say further that Mr.Meyer
has been attacking the fall that we indicate, the difference in
lov7el between those two curves, I might explain to you why we
have as great a fall there as we have indicated. We have wanted
to be fair in this. We are not concerned with either side. We
were simply wanting to be fair in it. Therefore we selected, in
computing this upper curve, a high frictional co-efficient in order
to be fair and in order not to take any chances and get too low
a natural level of Rainy Lake., We solected our co-efficient so
high that we felt we were on the safe side, Had we selected as
low a co-efficient as we felt we might be Justified in doing, we
would have gotten a curve up here in the lake that would have
fallen below this, and would have agreed with what Mr. Meyer
contends is the actual case.

Mr. Meyer: Oh, no,

Mr, Bartlett: Is the only guide we have in getting at
the natural level of the lake a question of computation? Are there
not any historical marks or erosions on stones or things of that
sort®?

Professor Wisler: The lake has been under artificial
regulation for a period of over twenty years and practically all
ofktheseforiginal marks are now submerged and there is no way that
I LOW Ol e
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Professor Wisler: There 1s one source of information
we are still working on. There is an ©ld Indian living up
there who has lived there all his life and we have been
endeavoring to get in touch with him. We sent a man out there
Just a short time ago to see if he could not find him and get
from him some information. As to the ocutcome of that trip we
have not learned yest.

Mr., Bartlett: We had a lot of this in New England and
the wash on the shore amd rocks was used for that. We have
had a case pending for years on the Conreeticut river. We have
lots of things of that sort, marks on the ledges and things
like that.

: Professor Wisler! The difficulty here is that the lake
has been raised so that all those marks are under the water
surfate. That is the trouble we have hadl We have sent a man
up there several times and the stage of the lake was 80 high that
the¥ were unable to find the origindl marks, but we are hoping
that the lake is now low ehough e
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Mr, Bartletty If you will pardon me, I am unlearned enough
to understand how certain the point is from which you start. What
is 1t that you absolutely know when you start with your curve?

Professor Wislert Well, we know the condition there at the
falls in a state of nature. -

Mr., Bartlett: That is, from surveys, the condition of the
rocks, the depth of the water, and so forth, you have a starting

Professor Wislert Yes, sir, Taking the curve as shown
in this report on Plate 83, we know beyond any argument, I
believe, that if thls curve is correct for the lower portions ==
and we believe it to be substantially correct for the lower por-
tions -- I say i1f 1t 1s correct up to the polnt vhere the tongue
of rock becomes submerged the width of the stream trebles we
know there must be a continued increase in that curve from that

Mr. Bartletty Because that holds it back?

Professor Wislert That holds it back in the low stages,
In effect, what that original curve indicates Is this: When
you get up to the point where the width of this stream trebles
there 1s no water discharge over that tongue of rock. There
could not be any discharge over that tongue of rock or there would
be a curvature in thls curve up above,

Mr, Bartlett: As a result you have a natural level of the
lake lower than that arrived at by Mr. Meyer?

Professor Wisler?{  Yes,

Mr. Bartlett4 ' About how mud ?

Professor Wisler?:@ I.do not remember the exact amount,
Mr, Bartlett! : Do you know, Mr. Meyer?

Mr. Meyers : In the flood of 1927 it was something over two
feet all summer, varylng in amount.

Mr, Bartletts: :And the di fference between you would vary
with the height of the flood? 1Is that true?

Mr..Meyers -Yes, Mr., Chalrmen, may I add a word? First of
all, I want to say there 1s nothing in what Professor Wisler has
said that does not involve the same consideratlons to which we
all gave attention in 1914, 1915 and 1916 when these curves were
originally worked out, Professor Wisler made the statement that
his curve as published in the report of 1932 more nearly conforms
to the observed meterings than the curve published in 1916 and
1930 and agreed to by Mr, Scovll yesterday.

I find on referring to this diagram that Professor Wisler's
curve is about 0.8 of a foot below Mr, Acres! metering when there-
was a dlscharge of about 14,000 cublc feet per second, which 1ls
a strateglc point as I see 1t, and which is the polnt where his
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curve starts to drop away down and where our curve stays up and
passes through Mr, Acres'! metering, accepting that as belng cor-
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Professor Wisler has referred to the impossibility of find-
ing any natural high water marks. I can only conclude, then, that
he has completely discarded the photograph that we took of natural
high water marks as we considered them to be; for example, on
October 15, 1913, and as published,

Mr., Bartlett{ ©Dld they have access to those photographs?

Mr. Meyeri They are in this published report. In addition
to that, there are dozens of photographs that are published,
Therc were also water marks photographed in 1915, It is true
that the dam had been in, but it 1s true also that there are levels
that are in the lake that show that the lake had never been at
those high water marks at the time these pictures were taken,
Therefore, I say that the marks were there to show where the water
went in the past In a state of nature. You can see very decided
defined marks on the rocks. You notlice these marks showing the
lichen and moss, ‘

Mr. Barlett{ What makes that show white in the photograph?

Mr, Meyert? All of the lichen were removed there. Some
represent levels that dld not occur as frequently.

Mr. Bartlett: You think thet was a water line at some time?

Mr., Meyerf{ Yes, decldedly. This is just a lichen that has
keen removed by the water., There are three water marks shown
on the picture. That 1s Plate EE taken in 1915, and water marks
are shown running all the way up to elevation 500, The first
engineers that went on the Lake of the Woods put a large bolt
into the rock on the Fort Francis side and called 1t 500 because
1t represented the high water mark on Rainy Lake.

Mr. Bartletti My experlence with water marks is that you
get a streak sort of parallel with the water,

Mr. Meyer, That is true, simply because the lichen had not
ell been removed to the same point, At some time the water was up
to the upper mark; at another time i1t was at an intermediate mark,
and at still another time 1t was at this lower mark, :

Mr, Bartlett{ Did i1t not make a ridge in the rock itself?

Mr, Meyers No;bthe rock was too hard and the water did not
stay long enough.

Now, to go back to the question of hydraulics as though the
fundamental hydraullcs of the situation proved our curve of 1916
to be wrong, The photographs published in our report are the
best possible proof of the way the water came down the stream,
around the end to the tongue of rock and up to the crest of the
falls and tumbled over the crest of those falls. Plate MM showe
ing Koochicking Falls has only a few bulldings in the background
taken before any dam was bullt, clearly showlng the tremendous
drive of water from around the end of the rock and leading up to
the crest of the falls, The mection at the crest of the falls is
not the section through the tongue of rock, Let us have that
clear., This Plate MM clesrly shows the tongue of rock with the
water very much higher above the tongue of rock thanm 1t 1s on the
slde below the tongue of rock.
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Section 73, which is at the tongue of rock, shows high points
at elevation 49€, and the entire section that we are speaklng about
that Professor Wisler said would be trebled 1s shown on this photo-
graph very clearly as belng covered with timber, broken rock and
debris, with only a small section sufficiently clear from trecs
and debris to admit any appreciable amount of overflow,

The section which carries the water 1ls shown as 24 or 25
fecet deep, and then alongside of thlis deep 25 feet comes thls sec-
tion that Professor Wisler referred to that would treble in size
carrying, however, practically no water to think of when we think
of 30,000 or 40,000 feect because the high points read elevation 496,

We had computed the dlscharge at those various sections
when we derlved those curves in the same way, and I still insist
that the actual measured fall from Rainy Lake from above that
tongue of rock as made in 1927, which shows about two feet as
agalnst the computed fall of 3,5 feet reqguired to bring that water
down, is proof that those curves of 1932 can not be correct.,

Mr. Bartlett: How far 1s 1t from the point where the fall
1s sharp back to where we are trylng to compute the level of the
Lake?

Mr, Meyer: About thfee miles,

_ Mr, Bartlett!{ What we are talking sbout is to determine how
mich the water falls from the level of the lake in going down to
this sharp fall,

Mr. Meyer: Not quite to the sharp fall, but to a point above
where that sharp fall occurs.

Mr. Bartlett! I am not sure I understand it.. If the lake
13 back here three miles or so, and the falls,. we say,, are down
ghiie miles, the lake narrows up somewhat in getting down to the
'alls?

Mr. Meyer! Trere are raplds right outlet and then the river
is wide and deep with practlcally no fall for almost the entire digs=
Eaige until you come right above the head of the rapids at the

alls.

Mr. Bartlett: You are talking about how much the fall is
from the level of the lake down to the sharp falls.

Mr. Meyery Just ahead of the sharp falls where the river is
8tlill wlde and deep.

. Mr, Bartlett:  That at different stages of the level of the
lake varles somewhat, does 1t?

Mr. Meyer: It does deecidedly, It varies somewhat in a state
of control,

Mr. Bartletty "I am talking of a state of nature. In a state
o{lnagure there would be some fall in getting down those three
miles®
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Mr., Mcyer: Yes,

Mr., Bartlett:; Would the fd 1 be more when the lake 1s higher
than when the lake is lower or vice versa?

Mr, Meyer: 1In general it is conceded to be the case that 1t
requires more fall at the hlgher stages than at the very low
stages.

Mr, Bartlett: When the lake 1s high water, flood water, 1s
there more fall from that level down to the falls, tnese three
miles, than there would ©te when the lake is down low?

Mr. Meyers: Yes, becausec of the raplds at the outlet.

Mr., Bartletts This thing you call curve, does that have any-
thing to do with the decllne of the water as it gets down to the
dam?

Mr, Meyer: Yes; the curve represents that fall.

Mr. Bartlett: I am trylng to see what it means, The curve
represents the decline on this drawing that I have made?

Mr., Meyers May I put 1t In thls way? There are two curves.
The one curve 1ls at the left hand side of your drawlng, belng the
lake, and the second curve 1s at the right hand side of your
drawlng, being the polnt above the falls, and each curve shows
how high the water is when there 1s a glven amount of water flow-
ing in the river.

Mr, Bartlett: I guess then I am not right. If that is
the level of the lake, the full height it 1s falling golng do wn
the three miles is not what ls represented on the map?

Mr, Meyer: No, but the difference is represented by the
dl fference between these two curves; that 1ls, the fall from the
lake to the falls 1s represented by the difference between the
two curves shown on the drawling,

Mr, Bartlett: Instead of saylng three fecet or two feet,
you represent that by a curve? ‘

Mr., Meyer: Yes.

Major Bullard: Mlght I interrupt for a moment Just to make
1t a little clearer just what thls curve means basically? These
curves are all based essentially on the same idea. Measuring on
the left you have certain elevations measured from the assumed
500 which was rfjtigt taken arblirarily. So thet at any point on
the curve you can see at the left that the elevatlon of the water
surface 1ls, say 491 and so on,.

Mr. Bartlett: Waat represents the level of the lake?

Major Bullard: The level of the lake 1s represented at any
time by anyone of these curves as golng across the 494, If you
take the elevation 49E, then golng down to the bottom of the
curve you come to the figure 12 which is 18,000 and that shows
you. the number of cublc feet per second passing through the
river for that elevation. If you lower the level of the lake to
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493, starting from 493 you read over to the curve showlng the
lake and you get a discharge of about 13000,

Mr. Bartletts You are away over my head, These curves
do not have anything to ® with the slant of the water from the
lake down to the falls, do they?

Major Bullard: The difference between the two curves does,
Mr, Bartlett:, It 1s merely a way of your showlng ==

Major Bullard: A variation in discharge as dependent upon
water levels, I might show that in another way by drawing a
sketch, Supposc we go into the fileld and measure on a certailn
178. date that the elcvatlion of the lake at a certain polnt is 500
feet above some assumed level. .

Mr. Stanleys Those elevatlions all refer to sea level datum?

Major Bullard: This particular level to which we refer,
the 500, was taken without reference to sea level, Suppose at
elevation 500 we determine that the dlscharge was 30,000 cublec
feet per second, We measure 30,000 along the horlzontal and
put a dot opposlite the 500 and opposite the 30,000, On another
day we measure the elevatlon at 492 and we find the dlscharge
was about 10,000. At ather elevations we make other dlscharge
measurements, and we draw a smooth curve through those,

Mr, Bartlette It 1s only a geometrlcal curve llke a stock
market curve or something like that, It has not anything to do
with the lake level, There are some ways of computing the slant
from the falls back up to the level of the lake, and Mr. Meyer
gets a higher level from his computations than you do.

Major Bullards There were a number of measurements made,
Mr, Meyer drew a Curve and we drew a curve, and we were not
greatly different, but extending it into the area where there
179. wore no measurements there was a great deal of difference as to
whether 1t should go up as a straight line or as a curved line,

Professor Wislers If I may interject one more remark, we
have had so many differences here that I think 1t is rather
lucky we have onc cgse in vhich we agree. In reply to a quest-
lon that I believe Governor Bartlett asked as to whether there
was greater fall in that stream from the falls up to the lake
at high stages than at low, Mr, Meyer sald there was and with
that I heartily agree, However, I might call attention to the
fact that the curves as indicated on plate 83 of the 1916 report
show the reverse to be the case; that at high stages there 1s a
fall of one and six~tenths feet, whereas when you come down a
little bit lower, that keeps increasing., The fall, in other
words, becomes less and less as the stage lncreases,

Mr. Meyer:; What does the same plate show the fall to be
in low water?

Professor Wisler: That depends upon which of the various
curves you take, There are several curves at the low stages,
and 1f you take the curves that apply to the same dates, they
indicate the same thing.
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Mr. Meyer: Tf I may refer to the blue print which shows
the curves of 1916 so far as the mcan or average relationship
is concerned, I think 1t must be very evident that they show about
one foot at cxtremeiy Low water and about one and seven~tenths
or one and eight-tenths feet at high water. Professor Wisler
stated that the difference in fall of three and one-quarter
fect and two feet for the same ilscharge and that the difference
In fall shown by the curves of 1932 as opposed to the difference
in fall shown by the curves of 1616 and 1930, was due, as I
recell 1t, largely to the fact that they had used large friction=-
al coefficlients to be on the safe side; that they had no grudge
against anyone and were not trylng to use a curve or a dlscharge
coefficient which would be disadvantageous. I want to say that
our curves were worked out in 1916 without reference to whose
foot would be pinched by the result and that we used coefflcients
we belicved to be accurate and correct, which were later checked
by the slope readings of 1916 to which I have referred and whid
are avallable for anyone to use to get the correct coefficlents
and not coefficients that are either on one slde or the other,

Mr. Bartlett: What was the object of working them out in
161692

Mr. Meyer; To derive the fact of the relatlonship in a
state of nature between Rainy Lake level and dlscharge.

Mr, Bartlett: It was done on some reference or other?

Mr. Meyer: Mr, Whlte and I as engineers to the commlssion
on the Lake of the Woods referencc worked out these curves to
which I now agreejto which Mry Scovil now agrees; to whieh Mr,
Scovlil and Major Crawford agreéeed in 1930, Hydraullcally; we are
told, 1t is impossible for the upper portion of that curve to
be a stralight line., I challenge that statement and I am willing
to prove in any labvoratory, where a controlled sectlon on a
stream varles as 1t does in this case, you can have exactly that
type of curve, I go one step further, I show you in the 1932
report, plate 13, whlch shows the rating curve of the Namakan
river at the outlet in Lake Lacrolx, and I ask you to look at
the upper end of that curve as I pass my ruler along that curve,
and I ask you as to whether or not that line is substantially
stralght. I will show 1t to eech one of you commissloners,

Is it substantially a stralght line as showlng the relationshlp
between outflow and stage for lake Lacroix? This 1ls a situatlion
considerably similar in that 1t 1s a lake with a rough, rocky,
irregular outlet.

My, Bartlett?! That is a stralght line, That 1ls all 1t
means to me,

Mr., Meyer: That is all I went to prove., There are other
rating curves where there 1s control, where there 1s a stralght
line relationship, showing it 1is not a physical impossibllity
for this curve to be correct. In fact, I say it 1s decldedly
rhyslcally possible to be correct because T say it 1s based on
computations and also on observed readings.

Mr. Bartlett: Do you ever take into accound
in this sort of study the situation that would exlst at the bed
of the 'river if therec was no water in 1t? Is the terrain at the
bottom of the river up three miles at the same level as 1t 1s
down at the falls?
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Mr. Meyer: We carefully consider the shape and helght
of thc bottom and the sides and the turns the water must make
in coming down the stream, the size of the channel, the irregular-
itles,

Mr., Bartlett: If the channcl dips down a few feet in golng
this distance, would that maeke the water flow faster?

Mr. Meyer., The water flows fastest near the outlet where
1t gnes over rock ridges. It Jumps over two ridges; then 1t gets
down into a wide, deep section of the river where there 1ls only
3/10ths or 4/10ths of a foot fall in about two milcs, because
the channel 1s so large there 1s practically no fall, The fall
represented by those two curves that I have been referringtto
represents substantially the fall required to force that water
through those raplds at the outlet of the lake, That, hydraul-
lcally, is what 1% substantially represents, because there 1s
only 3/10ths or 4/10ths feet fall in about two miles against a
fall of 1l=3/10ths feet repeatedly observed in a distance of
about half a mlle where those raplds occur.

Mr., Magrathes Perhaps you had better say a word or two
as to your work in the past in connection with this problem bew
fore us because there scems to be some doubt. They do not seem
to be aware of your connection with this work in the past.

Mr. Meyer; The curves called in question in the 1932 report
are the curves that are published as part of the report of the
consulting engineers to the International Joint Commission in
the Lake of the Woods investigation, Mr. Arthur B.Whilte then
represented Canada, and I represented the Unlted States. Our
report was made in 1916, after an exhaustive study of all of
these matters.

Mr. Bartlett! I should likec to ask Professor Wisler some
yueations., Can you tell me how you came into thls case or what
your initial position is or something of that sort?

Major Bullard: Professor Wisler is consulting engineer for
the American engineer assigned to the dity of asslsting the com-
mission in determining the Ralny lake levels,

Mr. Bartlett: That 1s yourself?

Major Bullard: I have been. Major Lyman 1s now officlally
designated for that purpose by the state department.

Mr, Bartlett: How long have you been on the case?

Major Bullard: I was on duty from July, 1928, untll July
1932,

Mr, Bartlett? Who was your predecessor?

Major Bullard: Major Crawford. There were two other offlc-
ers, Major Merks and Major Lamb who were originally assigned and
had only a very short time in connection with i1t. Major Crawford
did the real initiatlon of the work. '

Mr, Bartlett: In your work did you take into account the
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Major Bullard: I cannot give you positively from my own

knowledge how much welght was given to that,
Mr, Bartlett: Who can?

Major Bullard: I am not sure whether Professor Wisler can
or not, but the actual work was carried out by Mr., Voght who 1is at
present at Duluth aml 1s not here today.

Mr, Bartlette. Who flgured out the curve? Professor Wisler?

Major Bullard: M r., Voght under Professor Wisler's dir-
ection, :

Mr, Bartlett: When did Professor Wlsler come in?
Major Bullard., He was employed about December, 1929,

Mr, Bartletti As regards the matter of a curve, do you
take into account these monuments or evidences of height of
water, or do you make your curve theoretically, and then compare
that wlth other evlidences of the helght of the water?

Major Bullard: I would prefer to have Professor Wisler
answer that,

186. Professor Wisler. We did take into account all the data
avallables the photographs to which Mr. Meyer referred and the
records of high water levels and all that, We gave 1t all 1ts
proper welght,

Mr, Bartletti{ In making this curve you differ with each
other. Did you consider monuments at all or was that all theory?

Professor Wisler! Well, I cannot say that we consldered
monuments, There are no monuments.

Mr, Bartletty, Apparently there are some evlidences of the
helght the water went to at different tlmes, I do not know
whether there 1ls substantlal evidence of that or not., But X
am asking you whether you took such evidence lnto account or
jwt made your curve theoretically,

Professor Wisler: Well, 1% 1s made theoretlcally and then
checked as well as we could check 1t by all the observed levels,
If T may make this further statement, I am not at all averse to
a reconsideration of our curves, I am not, however, optimistic
as to our agreeing as to whlch is correct and which is wrore.

We both are so firmly convinced that we are correct that I am
afraild 1t will be difficult to reconcile fully our views each
187, with the other, I should,however, llke to say this, that 1t
appears to me as though this matter has assumed entlrely undue
importance, It is important in connection with the determin-
ation of the natural levels of Rainy Leke. It 1s important in
determining the damages that have occurred to property owners
on Rainy Lake and it is of some importance in determining the
cost of thls storage that is obtalned on Ralny Lake., I should,
however, like to call your attention to the fact that the stor-
age on Rainy Lake 1s the cheapest storage that we have had on
any of the lskes and it matters not whether we start with our
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curves or whether we start with Mr, Meyer's curves, we arrlive at
the same concluslon,

Mr, Bartlett: As to what?

Frofessor Wisler: As to the profitable storage that can
be obtained on Rainy Lake, It is merely a matter of degree, of
a slight change in the cost of that storage, and that change I
wlll guarantee will not be so great as to make any vital differ-
encc In the final concluslons as to any of the questions of the
refercnce. The answer to gquestion 4 will be slightly different
If we start with our curves from what 1t would be 1f we start
with Mr, Meyer's curves, but in elther case the final conclusions
are the same,

Mr. Stanley. Questlon 4 has to do with the cost of stor-
age?

Professor Wisler:, Yes,

Mr. Stanley: That 1s the thing I have been walting to
get at all the time. The one point that 1s of interest to the
commission ls the amount of water power developed, the approx-
imate cost of 1t, and then the variatlon in the levels of the
lakes, both high and low water, In a state of nature and under
this system of control, When 1t comes to low water, of course
the lakes, I presume, will always be higher to a degree than
they would be in a state of natures

Professor Wisler., Yes,

Mr, Stanley: When you o me to consldering high water, does
the construction of your dam ralse the lovel of the lake above
what 1t would be in a state of nature, say by three feet? Is
that what it would raise 1it?

Professor Wisler: No.
Mr, Stanley: What is the level of the pool you create?

Professor Wlsler. The amount of rise in the level varles
considerably from time to time. It depends upon the natumal flow
of the stream as to how much weter may be drawn out of Ralny
Lake at any particular -time, so that it 1s very hard to set any
flgure as being the amount that the lake has been ralsed. 1t
depends upon the particular day to which you refer,

Mr. Stanley: I understand that of course you let the
water out of the deam for use and that lowers the level, but
under the proposed structure with the gates closed, how much
would thils dam ralse thlis pool above what 1t would be 1f there
were no cdam there?

Proféssor Wislert That in turn depends entirely upon
how much wateT there 1s flowing.

Mr. Stanleys We will assume the flow of the water over the
dam, If you put in these proposed structures and close your
gates, how much will those structures artiflcally ralse the
level of the pool?
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Professor Wisler: The elevation of the dam 1ls at elevatlon
497, The helght above natural high water is six aml ore-tenth
feet .

Mr, Stanley: Take any arbitrary figure. Say that the level
of the water was 497 or 490 in a state of ma ture. Assumlng there
is water enough flowing to go over the dam, how much would the
proposed dam with its sluices €ksed raise that above that arbl-
trary level?

Professor Wigler: If the water was at 490 in a astate of
nature, with the dam closed it would be around let us say 498
because there would be about a foot of water going over the
crest of the dam,

Mr., Stanley: Ordimrily, whatever the high water was in a
state of nature, with the same amount of ralnfall occurring after
the construction of the dam, the subsequent high water would be
the high water that you had in a state of nature plus the artificial
height of the dam, would 1t not?

Professor Wisler: No,

Mr, Stenleys:; Approximately that?

Professor Wisler: No,

Mr, Stanley: What i1s the artificial raise?

Professor Wisler: For the reason that the badk water does
not increase, that l1s, as you railse the water level down to the
dam by, say six feet, you will not raise the level of the lake
six feet. It will be something less,

Mr. Stanley: Leaving out the question of the raplds,
the tendency of this dam 1s to ralse any high water that much high-
er, leaving out the foot or two of those falls, wlth the 'dam than
without 1%°?

Professor Wisler: It would if there were no excavatlon.

Mr. Meyer: Just ore word more. I am sorry I have kept you
with our detalls so long, I have Tspeatedly referred to actual
measurements of the fall from the lake to the dam during the
flood of 1916, I assume that when Professor Wlsler referred to
having used all the observed levels, he dld not refer to those
observatlions,

Professor Wisler: I cannot answer that question at presemnt
for T have not with me all the data with which we worked., I am
not sure whether we had any data in regard to the fall durlng
1916, My recollection is tlrt we dld have it, but I would not say
positively one way or the other.

Mr, Meyer: Then, may I ask this question, Professor
Wisler? If you have th: actwml, observed fall through Pithert's
Raplds for a certain lake stage and you have the actual, observed
discharge, the amount of water flowlng at the time, and you have
the cross sectlon of the channel as referred to by you previously,
as shown by the map of Pilther's Rapilds and as referred to in the
report, is 1t not true you can then compute coefficients of dils-
charge for use in that channel which are actual facts and not
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estimates?

Professor Wisler: Yes, May I say just one word 1n reply?
The net result that would accrue from the use of these actual
coefficlents to which Mr, Meyer has just referred would be this,
if T may have the bluepring it waild in no wise affect the -
"above falls" cubve used in the 1932 reporti ,T@e'ohly difference
that would result would be to drop the "in lake" curve used in
the 1932 report, therety showlng still lower natural levels in
Rainy Lake.

Mr. Meyer: Thank you for that answer, because I belleve
it will fully show the absurdity of the curves, It will show,
for example, that in a state of mture at a lake stage of 497
water would have been flowlng out of that lake at“ﬁhe rate of
over 38,000 cubic feet per secord, amlthe lake HéeVvelr on any
reasonable assumption of flood inflow could have tade the high
water marks shown on the rocks,

Nr, Bartlett: What have you to say to that; Professor
Wisler?

Professor Wisler: I simply can say we Have not Seeh- those
high water marks on the rocks referred to by Mr. Meyer,

Mr. Meye¥i You sald yoéu used them, the photographs of
them, not the marks themselves,

193. Professor Wisler: I will say this, that that dotted ourve
may be slightly in error, but no attack has yet been made upon
the method that was used in deriving it. The method upon which
that curve was derived 1s baslc. If the laws of hydraullcs apply,
the "above falls" curve as pubiished in the 1916 report, cannot
be correct.

Mr., Meyer: I can only answer that if the laws of hydraulics
apply as I have studied them and taught them in the University of
Minnesota for a number of years in the same way Professor Wisler
is teachling in the University of Michigan, that curve of 1916
1s correct, so you will see what chance there 1s of our reach-
ing an agreement,

Mr, Bartlett: The commils slon knows Mr., Meyer and hls
qualifications, I should llke to ask Professor Wisler as to
his education and experience and knowledge.

Professor Wisler: 1 have been graduated from the Univere
sity of Michigan, receiving the degree of Bachelor of Civil En-
gineering and Master of Sclence in Engineering.

Mr, McCumber: What year?

194, Professor Wisler: 1In 1913 I recelved the Bachelor of Civil
Engineering and in 1915, Master of Sclence, I should have grade
uated in 1907 had I not had difflculty with my eyes, so my statee
ment of my number of years of engineering experience may appear
inconsistent . I have had twenty=-five years of experlence as
consulting engireer in hydraulic engineering.

Mr, Bartlett: Are you teachlng?
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Professor Wisler: Yes,
Mr, Bartlett: Where?

Professor Wisler: A t present I am Professor of Hydraullc
Engineering in the Unlversity of Michlgan.,

Mr, Bartlett: How long have you been professor?

Professor Wisler: My rank was changed from assoclate pro=-
fessor to professor about a year and a half ago.

Mr, Bartlett: How many years do you say you have been
tecaching in the college? ’

Professor Wisler: I have been teachlng there since 1915,
with the exception of two years when I was assoclated wlth a
consulting engineer in Albany, New York.

195. Mr, Bartlett: When you are advising on a case like this,
are you still teachlng in the college?

Professor Wisler: I am not teachlng there thls week.

Mr. Bartlett: But generally spesking, they permit you
to go out?

Professor Wisler: Yes.,
Mr. Bartlett: Do you advise on cases more or less?

Professor Wisler: I am busy practlcally all the time,
belng retalned by someone or other,

Mr. Bartlett: Have you been on any large cases we know
about?

Professor Wisler ¢ I was employed by the State of New
York in the defence of the state 1n connection with clalms arising
as a result of the construction of the barge canal, I have been
consulting englneer for the State of Michigan, the Department of
Conservation, for the last nine years, I have thls last summer
been engaged by the Indlana Engineering Company in some litige-
tion which they had with the State of 11llinols =~ various Jobs
of that character.

Mr, Bartlett: Not knowing very much about your experlence
196+ and having had this difference here, I thought it was well to
ask what you had been doing., That was all.

Mr, Stanley: One other qusstion. Can you tell, roughly
speaking, about what would be the approximate dlfference in cost
including damages and the llke of that overflow in the area
affected, between the calculations based upon your computations
and the calculations based upon the computations of Mr, Meyer?

Professor Wisler: The estimated cost of damages to lands
and improvements on both Rainy and Namakaen lakes as glven in our
report is $100,000, ihat is based upon damages as they are at
present legally payable,.
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Mr. Staniey: That would those damages be 1f you took his
calculations?

Professor Wisler: I do not know,
Mr, Starlev: Would there be any material differemce?

Professor Wislery That depends upon more than is indiceted
by these curves, It depends upon the determination of the ordine
ary "igh natural level, the ordinary high water mark as it 1s
frequently referred to, and I suspect that there will be consider-
able differencc of opinion between various individuals as to what
wlll Pe that ordina ry high water mark on Railny Lske.

Mr. Stanley: If you accept hls computations, his state-
ment, as correct; supposing you had made no observatiors your~
self and you are given the computations, the findings of Mr,
Meyer, and told to estimate the area affected just as- you did
from your own data, what would be the difference?

Professor Wisler: Using the "above falls" curve as shown
in the 1916 report, I am not sure what Mr, Meyer would say is the
ordinary high water mark in Rainy Lake, and until I knew that,

I could not answer your question., It might possibly be we woulid
be In complete agreement, but I cannot answer 1t until I know
what hls answer would be.,

Mr, Stanley: Can you make any approximate of the dif ferw
ence from his computation of high water marlk as shown by that
curve ?

Frofessor Wisler:; He has rather indicated in some of hils
remarks there would be no damage,

Mr, Stanley: Sc 1 gather, that it wuld be less at
least, As I understand Mr, Meyer, he inivlmated that with the
present construction the water in a state of control would be
no higher than with that tongue left there. Am I correct?

Mr, Meyers Correct in so far as the extreme flood water
1s concerned, but not as far as the every day levels from year
to year are concerned.,

Mr, Stanleys: Do your computations, Professor Wisler, glve
a high water mark above his computations of natural high water
mark?

Profeasor Wisler: Well, Mr, Meyer has not submitted any
computasions cr any determination of the high water mark.

Mr. Meyer: The maximum high water mark,

Professor Wisler: Arl the vital thing here 1ls what 1ls the
ordinary Ligh water mark,

Mr, Stenley:; That 1les what destroys the vegetation., Hlgh
water for a few hours or a day or so will not do any great amount
of damage?

Profeasor Wlsler: Nc
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Mr, Stanley: It is the settled stage of water docs 1t?
Professor Wisler: Yes,

Mr, Meyer : On Rainy Lake high watcr always lasts .a long
time; it 1s not like a a&tream. '

Mr. Stenley: You cannot tell me whether your computation
would result in a materially greater damage to riparlian owners
than Mr, Meyer!s? o ‘

Professor Wisler: I have certain definite opinions as to
what the ordinary high water mark on Rainy Lake is, and I do not
believe that that would be greatly dlfferent, regardless of
whether we used Mr, Meyer's curve or whether we used our own
curve., As to Just how much dif ference there would be between
what he would determinc as belng the ordinary high water mark
and ours, -that I could not say.,

Mr, Stenley: As I understand it, the commlssion 1s anxlous
to ascertain just how material your differences are as to the
effect of these constiuctions in raising the level of the lake
generally above what 1t would be in a state of nature and the
damage to riparian owners, as regards timber, agricultural land
and the 1like. That is the vital thing nows We have skilled
engineers; both American and Canhadlan, and Mr. Meye¥) dualified
in every way to advise usg, and we coﬂid be hHdppy "were tlother fair
charmer away," If it is brue that the net resultd of thelr come
putations are not materially differenf, we could, to be on the
safe side, take the computations of the engineer who shows the
greatest amount of damage and reach a conclusion on that,

Mr, MeCumber: Might I ask Professor Wisler a question here,
You heard the testimony of Mr, Scovil, In substance, &f I have
it correctly, it was that the difference between your conclusions
and those of Mr, Meyer for all practical purposes was hardly
material, Do you agree with that?

befessor Wisler: Hardly material?

Sir William Hearst: So far as storage was concerned.
Mr. McCumber: Do you agree wifh that?

Professor Wilsler: Yes,

Mr, Stanley: As I understand the matter, they are agreed
as to the amount of storage obtainable, and as to the cost of
that storage outside of injury to riparian owners, there is nc
difference between them, The difference 1s as to the effect
upon the shore llnes by the difference in level,

Mr, McCumber: I understood the testimony of Mr. Scovil
was rather as to the practicability of the matter to the questions
that mist be declded by the commission,

Sir William Hearst: I did not so understand him, I
understood him to say for practical purposes from a storage stande
point he did not think there would be any materlal difference,
but when you came to the questlon of property damage, there might
be a material difference,

-
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Mr. McCumber: He dld not indicate it would be very
material in any inghance as I remember hls testimony. My purpose
in asking this question is this: T can see no reason why you
and Mr. Meyer, nctwithstanding you disagree so much on one point,
cannot get together and agree about what it would mean 1f you
adopted Mr. Meyer's provosition. You have aiready given us the
regult of what® you have adopted., Why cannot you get together
and see 1f you can agree upon what the result would be upon the
several guestions if you accepted Mr., Meyerls propdsition?

Professor Wisler: I would be very happy to get togethel
with Mr, Meyer and see 1f we can agres, I might gay, however;
that thereis going %o be anothier point aside friom the point that
he has ralsed in regard to the correctness of those durves, which
1s likely to lead to very material differences, to which you
refer, Senator Stanley., I suspect there will be a great differs
ence pernaps as to the conclusions that we will draw as to what
the ordinary high water mark ls,.

Mr ., McCumbers Suvpose you take Mr, Meyer!s conclusion,
I assume that he Ls certainly capable of making a concluslon
and that he will make 1t for you. Then can you not get together
and agree upon what the results of those conclusions would be
from Mr, Meyer's standpolnt for the many questions we have to
answer?

Professor Wisler: Tes,.

Mr., McCumber: Then we can declde 4o better advantage at
ieast as to what we will do in the case from an engineering stand-
nolint.

&

Mr, Stanley: As T understend 1%, from an observation of
these lakes as you have stated it the rise and fall of these lakes
are nothing like as rapid or suvdden as the rise and fall in a
river a mile or so wide. Whatever stage is obtailned 1s held for
some time on account c¢f the lmmensity of the watershed., In that
event, if you establlished any high water mark as a result of the
proposed siructure, you practically figure that the water reach-
ing that polnt will be destructive to boat houses or vegetatlion
or mills or anything else that happens to be below it. Is that
right?

Professor Wisler: Yes, slr,

Mr, Stenley: So your high water mark whatever 1t is willl ¥
form a falrliy substantlal basgls vpon which to calculate damages?

Professor Wisler: Yes, sir,

Mr. Stemley: Then I do nct see why you ard Mr, Meyer can
not get together, tare your hizh water mark and hls high water
mark -- you. have already your computations of the value of these
various properties -~ and ascertsin what w uvld be the difference
in damages to riperiasn owners and the like between the two cal-
culations, Does not that seem feaslble to youf?

Profesecr Wisler. Yes, sir. 1t does,

Mr, Stanley: Wiat ¢do you think about 1t, Mr, Meyer?
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Mr., Meyer: I think it could be done.

Mr. Magrath: Before we adjoutn, gentlemen, is there any=-
thing else you would like to say at the present tilme? Otherwise,
the matter is closed for the present.

Major Bullard: I would like to say to the Commission
that in any further work that is to be carried on I will not bé in
a position to keep in touch with the calculations and the develdp=
mentis that MajJor Lymen before there willl be any further meeting
of the Commission will be in full swing and will carry on better
than I coul}d;that while I do not wish to say to the Commission
that I do not desire to be called agaein, I do wish to say that
if I can be of any service I am sure that the Chief of Englneers
and the War Department will always be ready to order me back;
but I feel that it will not be necessary, armd I want to express
to the Commission my appreciation of the¢ great honor which 1t
has besen to work under the Commission and the great courtesy
which has always boen shown me. In order to be sure and a little
blit more positive, I would like to ask 1f there is any difference
as to the understanding of the mission of the engineerssin regard
to the point that has been discussed, I have worded it in thils
way: The englneers to report to the Commission an opinion as
to the effect of any plans proposed by Ilnterested partles, agree-
ing, as far as possible, upon the data and methods of calculation,
or reporting what may be such differences aml thelr effect.

Mr, Meyer:s Mr, Chairman, is there any doubt in anybody's
mind now, after all that has been sald, as to whether or not I
shall have access to caleculations and computations leading
up to these matters about which there have been differences?

Mr, Stanleys Major Bullard, ddd you put in that memorandum
the approximate area affected?

Major Bullard: I sald the effect of any plan,

Major Lymans In connection with Mr, Meyert'!s request for
computations and data, there are certaln limlitations which are
placed upon me as to what may be distributed. There are certaln
War Department files, and so forth which can not be let out.
They are not public documents., There is also certalin work that
i3 carried on in the office that I can not let out, But I willl
always be very glad to meet Mr, Meyer if he will come to our offlce
and discuss the matter with him, ard I will let him have every=-
thing I can within 1imits of the regulations,

Mr, Meyer: Thank you, Major Lyman; and I understand, then,
that the restriction you have just referred to does not cover che
calculations that I had requested in my letter of September 9th
and to which you replied on September 12th that the Commission had
not euthorized those calculations to be made public? You would
now feel free to make them public 1f the request were renewed?

Major Lyman: I do not fedl that 1t 1s necessary to semd
out my work sheets and the flgures that have been worked on in
the office., In reply to that request, I feel that the method
of computation and all the data which were used in the computation
are in the reports. The methcd 1s described on page 202, There
are some things which I can not set out formally, btut which can
be had in the office informally; and if Mr, Meyer will come to




208,

89.

Duluth I think we can have a discussion and iron out the details
of this request.

Mr, Meyers Thank you, Major Lyman, and I belleve if I had
rad access to the computations I had requested at that time we
could have saved at least this morning's time of the Commission
and considerably morec,

Mr, Magrath: If tlere i1s nothing further at this time,
gentl men, the Commission will now go into Executive Session,

(Thereupon, at 1:15 oiclock P.m., the Commission went into
Executive Session).
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